
Public 

 
Berkeley Homeless  
Services Panel of Experts 
 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.225.8035    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510.981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Services Panel of Experts  

MEETING AGENDA 
April 26, 2023 – 7:00 PM  

North Berkeley Senior Center, Aspen Room 
1901 Hearst Ave., Berkeley, CA 94709 

Commission Secretary:  Josh Jacobs (jjacobs@berkeleyca.gov; 510-225-8035) 
 

Mayor Arreguin: 
Carole Marasovic 

Rashi Kesarwani: 
Megan Wachspress 

Terry Taplin: 
Denah Bookstein 

Ben Bartlett: 
Paul Kealoha-Blake 

Kate Harrison: 
Mary Ann Meany 

Sophie Hahn: 
Cameron Johnson 

Susan Wengraf: 
Alice Feller 

Rigel Robinson: 
Donnell Jones 

Mark Humbert 
Jim Hynes 

 
 All items are for discussion and possible action. 

 
1. Roll Call. 
2. Public Comment on non-agenda items. 
3. Approval of Minutes from March 8, 2023 and April 18, 2023. [Attachment 1]. 
 
Updates/Action Items:  
4. Agenda Approval.  
5. Land acknowledgement. 
6. Acting Chair Report. Discussion. 
7. Reconsideration of vote to allocate monies to Russell House as to the amount 

needed for acquisition and renovation. Discussion and possible action. 
8. Review programs, current and proposed, funded under Measure P and establish 

priorities for funding. Discussion and possible action. 
9. Adjourn. 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Minutes from March 8, 2023 and April 18, 2023. 
2. Land Acknowledgement Statement. 
3. All Home Regional Action Plan. 
4. Measure P Categories of Spending. 
5. Measure P Program Forecast. 
6. Measure P Program Monitor Evaluation Summaries and Contracts. 

 
 

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx
mailto:jjacobs@cityofberkeley.info


Public 
Page 2 of 3 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts Meeting Agenda  
April 26, 2023 
 

 
Correspondence and Notice of Decision Requests:  
 
Deadlines for Receipt: 
A) Supplemental Materials must be received by 5 PM the day before the meeting.  
B) Supplemental Communications must be received no later than noon the day of the meeting. 
 
Procedures for Distribution: 
A) Staff will compile all Supplemental Materials and Supplemental Communications received by the 
deadlines above into a Supplemental Packet, and will print 15 copies of this packet for the Commission 
meeting.  
B) For any Supplemental Material or Communication from a Commissioner received after these deadlines, 
it is the Commissioner’s responsibility to ensure that 15 printed copies are available at the meeting. 
Commissioners will not be reimbursed for any printing or materials expenses. 
C) Staff will neither print nor distribute Supplemental Communications or Materials for subcommittee 
meetings.  
 
Procedures for Consideration:  
A) The Commission must make a successful motion to accept and receive all Supplemental Materials and 
Communications into the record. This includes the Supplemental Packet compiled by staff.  
 
B) Each additional Supplemental Material or Communication received by or before the meeting that is not 
included in the Supplemental packet (i.e., those items received after the respective deadlines above) must 
be individually voted upon to be considered by the full Commission.  
 
C) Supplemental Materials subject to a Commission vote that are not accepted by motion of the 
Commission, or for which there are not at least 15 paper copies (9 for each Commission seat, one for staff 
records, and 5 for the public) available by the scheduled start of the meeting, may not be considered by the 
Commission.  
 
*Supplemental Materials are defined as any items authored by one or more Commissioners, pertaining to 
an agenda item but available after the agenda and packet for the meeting has been distributed, on which 
the Commission is asked to take vote at the meeting. This includes any letter to Council, proposed Council 
report, or other correspondence on behalf of the Commission for which a full vote of the Commission is 
required. 
 
**Supplemental Communications are defined as written emails or letters from members of the public or 
from one or more Commissioners, the intended audience of which is the full Commission. Supplemental 
Communications cannot be acted upon by the Commission, and they may or may not pertain to agenda 
items. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda will 
be made available for public inspection at Health, Housing & Community Services Department located at 
2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor.  
 
Public Comment Policy:  
Members of the public may speak on any items on the Agenda and items not on the Agenda during the 
initial Public Comment period. Members of the public may not speak more than once on any given item. 
The Chair may limit public comments to 3 minutes or less. 
 
Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the Commission regarding any item on this agenda will 
be made available for public inspection at Health, Housing & Community Services Department located at 
2180 Milvia Street, 2nd Floor.   
 



Public 
Page 3 of 3 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts Meeting Agenda  
April 26, 2023 
 
COMMUNITY ACCESS INFORMATION 
This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-related 
accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact the 
Disability Services specialist at 981-6342 (V) or 981-6345 (TDD) at least 3 business days before the 
meeting date.  Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting. 
 
Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public record and will become part 
of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s website.  Please note: e-mail 
addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, but if included in any 
communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become part of the public record.  If you do 
not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, you may deliver 
communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, commission or 
committee.  If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please do not include 
that information in your communication.  Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, commission or 
committee for further information.  The Health, Housing & Community Services Department does not take 
a position as to the content.  Communications to Berkeley boards, commissions or committees are public 
record and will become part of the City’s electronic records, which are accessible through the City’s 
website.  Please note: e-mail addresses, names, addresses, and other contact information are not required, 
but if included in any communication to a City board, commission or committee, will become part of the 
public record.  If you do not want your e-mail address or any other contact information to be made public, 
you may deliver communications via U.S. Postal Service or in person to the secretary of the relevant board, 
commission or committee.  If you do not want your contact information included in the public record, please 
do not include that information in your communication.  Please contact the secretary to the relevant board, 
commission or committee for further information.  The Health, Housing & Community Services Department 
does not take a position as to the content.   
 
ADA Disclaimer “This meeting is being held in a wheelchair accessible location. To request a disability-
related accommodation(s) to participate in the meeting, including auxiliary aids or services, please contact 
the Disability Services Specialist at 981-6418 (V) or 981-6347 (TDD) at least three business days before 
the meeting date. Please refrain from wearing scented products to this meeting.” 



Public 

 
Berkeley Homeless  
Services Panel of Experts 
 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.225.8035    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Services Panel of Experts  

MEETING MINUTES  
March 8, 2023 

 
1. Roll Call: 7:00 PM 

Present:  Johnson, Kealoha-Blake, Marasovic, Bookstein (absent until 7:05), and 
Meany.  

Absent:  Jones, Feller.  
Staff:  Jacobs.  
Council:  None. 
Public: 0. 
 

2. Comments from the Public: 0. 
 
Update/Action Items 
3. Approval of Minutes from February 1, 2023. 
 

Action: M/S/C Marasovic/Kealoha Blake move to approve the minutes as written.  
 

Vote:   Ayes:  Johnson, Marasovic, Kealoha-Blake, and Meany. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Bookstein, Jones, Feller. 

 
4. Agenda Approval.  
 

Action: M/S/C Meany/Marasovic move to approve the agenda as written.  
 

Vote:   Ayes:  Johnson, Bookstein, Marasovic, Kealoha-Blake, and Meany. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Jones, Feller. 

 
5. Land acknowledgement.  

 
Discussion; no action taken. 
  

6. Recommendation Selection of modified date for April, 2023 HSPE meeting. 
Discussion and possible action. 

 
Action: M/S/C Marasovic/Meany move to modify the April 2023 HSPE meeting from 
April 5, 2023 to April 26, 2023.  

 
Vote:   Ayes:  Johnson, Bookstein, Marasovic, Kealoha-Blake, and Meany. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Jones, Feller. 

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx


Public 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts  
March 8, 2023 
 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.225.8035    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Services Panel of Experts 

 
7. Staff update on health and safety protocols for in-person commission meetings, 

Here/There encampment closure, and Emergency Resolution Funding Grant Round 
2. Discussion. 

 
Discussion; no action taken. 

 
8. Chair Report. 
 

Discussion; no action taken. 
 

9. Articulating a clearer mission and Homeless Services Panel of Experts’ goals. 
Discuss impact that HSPE has on Council decisions. Discussion and possible 
action. 

 
Discussion; no action taken. 
 

10. Vice-Chair report on Council Budget & Finance Committee meetings and other 
community updates. Discussion and possible action. 
 
Discussion; no action taken. 

 
11. Recommendation on HOME ARP funds pursuant to City’s application. Discussion 

and possible action. 
 
Action: M/S/C Marasovic/Meany recommends that the staff recommendation for 
support services for HOME-ARP monies include a segment of those monies to be 
directed to a gender-based/domestic violence transition house which would also 
serve sex trafficking victims. If HOME-ARP monies are not to be so utilized, then 
that Council identify another source of funding for this purpose and refer to staff for 
implementation.  

 
Vote:   Ayes:  Johnson, Bookstein, Marasovic, Kealoha-Blake, and Meany. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Jones, Feller. 

 
12. Review programs, current and proposed, funded under Measure P and establish 

priorities for funding. Discussion and possible action. 
 

Discussion; no action taken. 
  
13. Rescission of inclement weather recommendation to be modified to recommendation 

to incorporate inclement weather needs coordination in community agency allocation 
process with interim delegation of this function to a current Berkeley homeless 
services provider. Discussion and possible action.  
 

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx


Public 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts  
March 8, 2023 
 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.225.8035    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Services Panel of Experts 

Action: M/S/C Marasovic/Meany move to rescind the inclement weather 
recommendation to be modified to recommend to incorporate inclement weather 
needs coordination in community agency allocation process with interim delegation 
of this function to a current Berkeley homeless services provider. 

 
Vote:   Ayes:  Johnson, Bookstein, Marasovic, Kealoha-Blake, and Meany. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Jones, Feller. 
  

14. Selection of site visit(s). Discussion and possible action. 
 
Discussion; no action taken. 

 
15. Adjourn. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:00 PM. 

 
Minutes Approved on: _________________________ 

 
 

Josh Jacobs, Commission Secretary:        
 
 

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx


Public 

 
Berkeley Homeless  
Services Panel of Experts 
 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.225.8035    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Services Panel of Experts  

MEETING MINUTES  
April 18, 2023 

 
1. Roll Call: 7:00 PM 

Present:  Bookstein (7:29 PM), Feller, Hynes, Johnson, Kealoha-Blake, Marasovic, 
Meany, and Wachspress.  

Absent:  Jones.  
Staff:  Jacobs, McCormick, Radu, Warhuus.  
Council:  None. 
Public: 4. 
 

2. Comments from the Public: 2. 
 
Update/Action Items 
3. Approval of Minutes from March 2023. 
 

Action: M/S/C Johnson/Kealoha Blake move to approve the minutes as written.  
 

Vote:   Ayes:  Johnson, Kealoha-Blake, Marasovic, and Meany. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: Feller, Hynes, Wachspress. Absent: Bookstein, Jones. 
 
Motion failed.  

 
4. Agenda Approval.  
 

Discussion; no action taken. 
 
5. Land acknowledgement.  

 
Discussion; no action taken. 
  

6. Acting chair report. Discussion. 
 

Discussion; no action taken. 
  
7. Review programs, current and proposed, funded under Measure P and establish 

priorities for funding. Discussion and possible action. 
  

Action: M/S/C Marasovic/Hynes recommend to City Council to allocate $4.5 million 
in Measure P monies to Berkeley Food and Housing Project (BFHP) for the 

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx


Public 
Homeless Services Panel of Experts  
April 18, 2023 
 

A Vibrant and Healthy Berkeley for All 
 

2180 Milvia Street, 5th Floor, Berkeley, CA  94704    Tel: 510.225.8035    TDD: 510.981.6903    Fax: 510. 981.5450 
E-mail: hspe@cityofberkeley.info | Homeless Services Panel of Experts 

acquisition of Russell Street Residence and that city staff otherwise coordinate with 
BFHP to leverage other sources of funding, including city monies and monies 
external to the city, for necessary renovations in the amount of $4.3 million. 

 
Vote:   Ayes:  Bookstein, Feller, Hynes, Johnson, Kealoha-Blake, Marasovic, 
  Meany, and Wachspress. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Jones. 
 
Action: M/S/C Hynes/Wachspress move to recommend that $412,185 be allocated 
towards the inclement weather shelter. 
 
Vote:   Ayes:  Bookstein, Feller, Hynes, Johnson, Kealoha-Blake, Marasovic, 
  Meany, and Wachspress. 
            Noes: None. Abstain: None. Absent: Jones. 

 
8. Adjourn. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 9:00 PM. 

 
Minutes Approved on: _________________________ 

 
 

Josh Jacobs, Commission Secretary:        
 
 

mailto:hspe@cityofberkeley.info
https://www.cityofberkeley.info/Clerk/Commissions/Commissions__Homeless_Services_Panel_of_Experts.aspx


Public 

Land Acknowledgement Statement 
 
 
The City of Berkeley recognizes that the community we live in was built on the territory 
of xučyun (Huchiun (Hooch-yoon)), the ancestral and unceded land of the Chochenyo 
(Cho-chen-yo)-speaking Ohlone (Oh-low-nee) people, the ancestors and descendants 
of the sovereign Verona Band of Alameda County. This land was and continues to be of 
great importance to all of the Ohlone Tribes and descendants of the Verona Band. As 
we begin our meeting tonight, we acknowledge and honor the original inhabitants of 
Berkeley, the documented 5,000-year history of a vibrant community at the West 
Berkeley Shellmound, and the Ohlone people who continue to reside in the East Bay. 
We recognize that Berkeley’s residents have and continue to benefit from the use and 
occupation of this unceded stolen land since the City of Berkeley’s incorporation in 
1878. As stewards of the laws regulating the City of Berkeley, it is not only vital that we 
recognize the history of this land, but also recognize that the Ohlone people are present 
members of Berkeley and other East Bay communities today. The City of Berkeley will 
continue to build relationships with the Lisjan Tribe and to create meaningful actions 
that uphold the intention of this land acknowledgement. 



 

 1 

  

 

 RIC STATEMENT OF EMERGENCY: A REGION IN CRISIS 

 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN 

A Call to Action from the Regional Impact Council 
 

February 2021  |  All Home 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 2 
 

   

 

I. Emergency Statement from the Regional Impact Council  Page 3 

II. Call to Action Page 5 

III. Lead with Racial Equity Page 7 

IV. Operationalizing this Work Page 8 

V. Plan Details Page 9 

Comprehensive 1-2-4 Framework Page 9 

Priorities for Implementation Page 11 

Impact Metrics & Tracking Page 20 

VI. Introduction to the Regional Impact Council Page 21 

VII. End Notes Page 25 

Acknowledgements Page 25 

Glossary Page 26 

 
 
  

Cover page photo source: Eden Housing 

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 3 
 

 
A PROBLEM WE CAN SOLVE 
The Bay Area’s homelessness crisis is a chronic problem, arguably the region’s greatest and most serious challenge. 
The scale and complexity of this challenge is undeniably daunting. As a region we have fought to solve this crisis for 
decades, to limited avail. However, the problem can and will be solved. We need a new approach to homelessness, 
marked by new levels of regional cooperation. The Regional Impact Council (RIC) envisions a Bay Area that is united 
and coordinated against homelessness: a Bay Area that is organized to seamlessly share best practices, data 
systems, advocacy efforts, and resources. In the Bay Area we envision homelessness is a rare, brief, and non-
recurring situation for those who experience it. In this future vision, we have closed racial and economic disparities 
and created an equitable, stable, and prosperous region. The path to this future will not be easy. It will require action and 
commitment from all levels of government and community. The RIC believes that we can and must do the work to make this 
vision real. The first step is to acknowledge that homelessness is an emergency requiring immediate action. 

A REGION IN CRISIS 
The longstanding homelessness crisis in the Bay Area— described by a global expert as “systemic cruelty”1— is 
particularly tragic because the crisis expanded during an economic boom in the wealthiest region in North America. 
In 2020, the homelessness crisis further deepened as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic: without sizable, 
coordinated action and investment, it will continue to destabilize our region as time, and the pandemic, goes on. 

In our nine-county Bay Area today, more than 35,0002 of our neighbors, a population larger than many of the region’s 
suburban cities and towns, lack housing or even the prospect of securing it - despite many working full-time. 
Seniors, people with disabilities and many people working demanding jobs live out of their vehicles, in tents, and in 
other situations not fit for human habitation because they simply cannot afford housing in the region that they call 
home. For some, this problem continues for generations. Many “essential” workers (e.g., home health aides, grocery 
store clerks, cleaning staff at medical facilities) are literally homeless, with tens of thousands more of these workers 
at-risk of becoming homeless. In particular, extremely low income (ELI) renters face significant housing insecurity: 
50% receive neither housing subsidies nor rent protection, and another 34% have controlled rents which are still 
unaffordable without subsidy. 

Doing nothing to address the Bay Area homelessness crisis is enormously costly, in economic as well as moral terms. 
Many of these costs to our society are in plain sight, and many are hidden. Confronted by human suffering on a daily 
basis, residents and businesses are leaving the region. In a recent Silicon Valley Leadership survey, 47% of 
respondents said that they had considered leaving the region as a result of the homelessness situation. As a result 
of the impacts that homelessness has on individuals and the community as a whole, the indirect costs of 
homelessness on healthcare, criminal justice, and social services are nearly $2 billion annually, based on estimates 
using real costs from Santa Clara county. We must think holistically as a region about our response to this crisis, and 

 
1 Leilani Farha, United Nations Special Rapporteur, 2018.  
2 Given the lack of PIT count in 2021, we created an estimate of the total unsheltered homelessness in the Bay Area. If we apply 
the unsheltered homelessness growth rate from 2017-2019 in the Bay Area (~17%) to the unsheltered population in 2019, we 
estimate unsheltered homelessness to be ~30K. However, given the known impacts of COVID-19 on shelter capacity in the Bay 
Area and early evidence supporting a growth in homelessness, we estimated that unsheltered homelessness is likely closer to 
35K in the Bay Area. 

 
EMERGENCY STATEMENT 

 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 4 
 

recognize that the investment required to address unsheltered homelessness is small compared to the long-term 
social and economic costs of our current course. 

 

Figure 1: Breakdown of ELI Renter Households; Source: Terner Center for Housing Innovation 

COVID-19 has made the region’s limited supply of congregate shelter unusable due to its primarily communal living 
arrangements, placing our most vulnerable neighbors at heightened risk of exposure. Housing is healthcare, a fact 
further underscored by the COVID pandemic. A person is unable to “shelter in place” when there is an inadequate 
supply of shelter and housing. The homelessness and COVID crises disproportionately harm Black, brown and 
Indigenous people of color (BIPOC). For example, African Americans comprise only 6% of San Francisco’s general 
population but make up 37% of the city’s homeless population. As these groups are also more vulnerable to becoming 
seriously ill or dying from COVID-19, the current situation puts our region’s low-income BIPOC population at ‘double 
jeopardy’ of becoming homeless and gravely ill as COVID cases surge across California and job losses continue to 
mount, disproportionately for BIPOC communities. 

In our region of unparalleled ingenuity, creativity, and affluence for many, a failure to address the homelessness 
crisis – a crisis that existed years before the COVID pandemic, will weaken our communities, drive people and 
business away from the region, exacerbate existing labor market instabilities, and altogether undermine the 
prospects for a vibrant, prosperous future for the Bay Area. 

Homelessness is no longer a challenge faced by a handful of Bay Area cities, it's a regional crisis. Similar to our 
pandemic response, we must act together as a region. We must lift up what works. We’ve witnessed communities 
rapidly and creatively providing interim and permanent housing options for unsheltered households in response to 
the COVID-19 outbreak. We know given the will and coordinated action displayed by County Public Health Directors 
in response to the pandemic, that rapid and meaningful regional action is possible, and we must harness that 
momentum to fix our systems—systems that are clearly broken and that have failed to stop the tidal wave of people 
who have had no option but to live on the streets.  

 

WE, THE UNDERSIGNED MEMBERS OF THE REGIONAL IMPACT COUNCIL (RIC), URGE IMMEDIATE ACTION. THE 

BAY AREA’S EPIDEMIC OF UNSHELTERED HOMELESSNESS MUST BE ADDRESSED AS AN EMERGENCY. 
 
WE CALL UPON THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA, OUR CITIES AND COUNTIES, THE REGION’S BUSINESS AND 

PHILANTHROPIC COMMUNITIES, AND OUR FEDERAL PARTNERS TO ACT WITH UNPRECEDENTED URGENCY AND 

COORDINATED ACTION, AS IF LIVES ARE AT STAKE - BECAUSE THEY ARE. 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 5 
 

SIGNATURES 

RIC Statement of Emergency Signatories  

Name Signature 

Andreas Cluver (Secretary-Treasurer, Alameda 
County Building Trades Council) 

 

David Chiu (California State Assembly member) 
 

Diana Reddy (City Councilmember, Redwood 
City)  

Erin Connor (Manager, Cisco Crisis Response)  

Hydra Mendoza (Chief of Strategic 
Relationships, Salesforce)  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
CALL TO ACTION: SUMMARY 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 6 
 

 
THE UNDERSIGNED MEMBERS OF THE REGIONAL IMPACT COUNCIL CALL FOR THE FOLLOWING 
EMERGENCY ACTIONS: 

 

ADDRESS THE UNSHELTERED CRISIS 
We must accelerate work to bring 75% of the unsheltered indoors by 2024 by improving existing systems & investing 
in the 1-2-4 system flow model, described below (see the sidebar on page 9 for details): 

(1) Fund the interim housing needed to bring unsheltered people indoors immediately and ensure that those who 
were temporarily housed during COVID-19 have a safe permanent housing option 

(2) Fund 2 housing solutions for every interim housing unit added to the homelessness system  

(4) Fund 4 preventative interventions for every interim housing unit added to the homelessness system 

 

To deliver on this ambitious goal, we will need to improve our existing systems and policies and secure more funding. 
This model is underpinned by our strategic pillars, which will guide our implementation of the 1-2-4 system flow 
model 

 

 
Figure 2: RIC strategic pillars underpins the 1-2-4 system flow model 

  



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 7 
 

LEAD WITH RACIAL EQUITY 

 

This plan and its proposed actions - including the priorities for implementation outlined below - must be grounded 
in closing racial disparities - currently reflected by the disproportionately high percentage of Black, brown, and 
Indigenous peoples who are homeless or at-risk of becoming homeless. In particular: 

• The State of California should establish standards and best practices for measuring current racial equity 
levels and for demonstrating progress; the State should increase accountability for outcomes by tying 
funding to demonstrated progress toward closing racial disparities. 

• Private and philanthropic partners should actively prioritize funding interventions targeted to BIPOC 
experiencing homelessness or at risk of becoming homeless. 

• All Counties should operationalize equity-based prioritization schemes, service provision, and rental 
assistance programs in the most vulnerable communities. Geographic targeting based on area deprivation 
index, high rates of poverty, lack of home ownership, high rates of eviction, rental burden, zip codes or some 
combination could be considered as possible ways to operationalize prioritized services. 

 

CALL FOR FEDERAL PARTNERSHIP 
These actions will require expanded Federal funding and partnership. The $1.9 trillion Biden-Harris Administration 
“American Rescue Act” coronavirus relief package was a positive first step. We call upon Congress to act 
immediately on the following:  

• Pass the Biden-Harris “American Jobs Plan,” an approximately $2 trillion infrastructure and recovery package 
that includes $213 billion “to produce, preserve, and retrofit more than two million affordable and sustainable 
places to live  

• Provide HUD-Housing Choice Vouchers to every eligible household, prioritizing people who are experiencing 
or are at-risk of homelessness. Currently, only 1 out of 4 eligible households receive a Housing Choice 
Vouchers 

• Allocate $44 billion annually to the Housing Trust Fund to help states and localities, which responded quickly 
and creatively to move individuals experiencing homelessness into non-congregate settings, to now acquire 
and convert available properties, including hotels, motels, and other opportunity sites, into permanent 
housing solutions so that no one is returned to living outdoors 

• Invest $70 billion to repair and rehabilitate existing public housing 
• Create innovative new funding strategies that facilitate cross-discipline investment and cross-jurisdictional 

collaboration 
• Expand Medicaid funding to include stable housing as part of holistic treatment plans 

In addition to these immediate actions, we call on the Federal government, in close coordination with the State, to 
provide new funding needed to ensure all local jurisdictions are able to implement plans to house 75% of our 
unsheltered population by 2024 by implementing a full range of prevention and housing options.  

We commit to working with Congress and the Biden-Harris Administration to identify and develop innovative, 
scalable solutions to homelessness and poverty. We look forward to quickly turning our attention to “Housing as 
Infrastructure” and working with our California Congressional delegation to achieve the requisite scale of federal 
investment in affordable housing to truly make homelessness in the United States an experience that is rare and 
brief, not one that persists for decades.  

 
LEAD WITH RACIAL EQUITY 

 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 8 
 

OPERATIONALIZING THIS WORK 
The total 5-year cost of sheltering 75% of the Bay Area’s unsheltered population, while investing in the 
comprehensive system flow outlined by the 1-2-4 framework, is estimated at $6.5 billion, with $1.6 billion needed in 
2021. Existing resources can (and are) being used to fund this approach. New resources may be required in 
jurisdictions where current plans are not consistent with the 1-2-4 approach; that is, where resources are 
insufficient to fund prevention, interim housing, and permanent housing solutions simultaneously and at scale. 

• The State of California should condition existing and new funds on implementing the three-pronged 1-2-4 
framework, starting with a pilot project in the Bay Area in 2021 

• The State should provide expanded technical assistance to local jurisdictions, to enable seamless 
implementation of the 1-2-4 framework in our region 

• Local jurisdictions will be provided with assistance from All Home that recognizes the unique local 
circumstances as they work to activate the 1-2-4 framework. All Home will also provide support for inter-
jurisdictional coordination within and between the region’s counties 

• If new funds are required, this coalition will work to raise the necessary resources from the state and federal 
governments 

Our funding estimates reflect the cost of adding intervention capacity in a 1:2:4 ratio across interim housing, 
permanent housing solutions, and homelessness prevention interventions over time. Based on our high-level 
analysis, approximately $6.5 billion in total investment is required over 5 years, split roughly evenly between capital 
and operating costs. The cost estimates are designed using Bay Area (9-county) averages, and assume limited 
interim capacity is available to shelter the currently 35,000 unhoused individuals living in the region. We put forward 
the estimate with an understanding that the number of unsheltered people— and the costs to serve them— will 
continue to grow until we significantly reduce the inflow of individuals and households to homelessness. 

PRIORITIES FOR IMPLEMENTATION 
We have identified eight priorities for focus as we implement this work, expanded on in the Additional Detail section: 

House & Stabilize 
Strategic Priority #1: Secure Shelter-In-Place (SIP) housing locations   

Strategic Priority #2: Streamline State funds and applications for housing and homeless services 

Strategic Priority #3: Prioritize extremely low income (ELI) households for housing resources  

Strategic Priority #4: Extend covenants of affordability to preserve affordable housing supply and fund ELI tenancy 

Prevent 
Strategic Priority #5: Extend eviction moratoriums   

Strategic Priority #6: Accelerate cash payments to people impacted by COVID-19  

Strategic Priority #7: Provide targeted rental assistance to those impacted by COVID-19, who are most vulnerable to 
homelessness 

Strategic Priority #8: Accelerate targeted, data-informed regional homelessness prevention model  

 
OPERATIONALIZING THIS WORK 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 9 
 

PLAN DETAILS 
THE COMPREHENSIVE 1-2-4 FRAMEWORK 
To ensure we can realize on our ambitions to reduce unsheltered 
homelessness, we need a model to operationalize across the Bay 
Area. The model outlined below will enable the region to move 
expeditiously toward disrupting homelessness and reducing the 
current level of unsheltered homelessness by 75% before 2024. We 
call for actions that accelerate progress toward this goal, which 
includes an interim target of housing 30% of today’s unsheltered 
population in 2021. 

 

Figure 3: Unsheltered homelessness reduction ambitions by year, ‘21- ‘24 

Successfully housing the unsheltered population and bringing them 
to a permanent exit from homelessness requires designing and 
investing commensurately in an expansion of permanent affordable 
housing or housing subsidy options to create “system flow,” which is 
the movement of people off the streets and into stable housing (in 
particular, housing with requisite, needs-based services attached). A 
comprehensive “system flow” includes: 

• homelessness prevention,  
• interim housing options (as needed),  
• supportive housing, 
• and a broad set of flexible subsidies or deeply affordable 

housing options for those who do not need permanent 
supportive housing.  

 
We propose a flow that calls for capacity additions in the following 
ratio: 1 additional interim housing unit, 2 permanent housing 
solutions, and 4 prevention interventions. This model will add the 
capacity necessary to address the crisis in the near term. 

1-2-4 FRAMEWORK 

Before the current pandemic conditions, 
several Bay Area counties were already 
exhibiting dramatic increases in their 
unsheltered homeless PIT counts from 
2017-2019. Continuing on that trajectory 
is unacceptable. Our communities must 
do better at providing the dignity of a safe 
housing option, interim or permanent, for 
those who are living outdoors. The 1-2-4 
Framework is an acknowledgement that 
an effective and sustainable plan to do 
better requires investment in multiple 
strategies at once – homelessness 
prevention, interim or emergency 
housing, permanent deeply affordable or 
permanent supportive housing, and 
housing subsidies. It is not enough to 
simply provide emergency shelter if there 
are (a) insufficient long-term housing 
options (“exits”) to provide outflow, and (b) 
insufficient focus on reducing inflow. 

We live in a region with a large population 
of highly rent-burdened low-income 
households, who lack access to an 
available supply of more affordable 
housing. We will never break the cycle of 
unsheltered homelessness without a 
significant investment in homelessness 
prevention (short-term interventions to 
assist households experiencing a crisis 
that may cause them to lose housing). 

“1-2-4” is not a prescription or a one-size-
fits-all solution. It’s a ratio that illustrates 
proportionate investment in three 
strategies simultaneously. In order to 
reduce unsheltered homelessness 
rapidly, most cities or counties will need 
to frontload investment into interim 
housing options, such as leasing or 
purchasing motels, tiny homes, mobile 
homes or other temporary housing 
options. 

 
 
 
 
Our recommendation is that for every 
unit of interim housing that is created (“1”), 
two permanent housing options (“2”) such 
as a housing subsidy that can write down 
the cost of a market rate apartment or a 

 
PLAN DETAILS 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 10 
 

The RIC workgroups have established a high-level cost assessment of 
the resources required to meet our goal of sheltering 75% of 
unsheltered people by 2024. We put forward the estimate with an 
understanding that the number of unsheltered people will continue to 
grow until we significantly reduce the inflow and increase the outflow, 
or exits. The estimate draws on cost and flow assumptions 
triangulated from various county-level sources and are taken as Bay 
Area (9-county) averages. These estimates reflect the cost of adding 
intervention capacity in a 1:2:4 ratio across interim shelter, 
permanent housing solutions, and homelessness prevention 
interventions over time. Based on these assumptions and analyses, 
approximately $6.5 billion in total investment is required across five 
years, split roughly evenly between capital and operating costs. 

 
Figure 4: Comprehensive System Flow Model  

 

Figure 5: 1-2-4 Framework Cost Outlook (30%/30%/15% scenario shown) 

 

 

 

 

 

Our recommendation is that for every 
unit of interim housing that is created (“1”), 
two permanent housing options (“2”) such 
as a housing subsidy that can write down 
the cost of a market rate apartment or a 
newly acquired or created affordable unit 
must be planned, so that people don’t 
linger for extended periods of time in 
interim housing. It is critical that people 
move from interim to permanent housing 
quickly, so that the interim options can be 
made available to others who still remain 
unhoused. Simultaneously, we 
recommend that each unit of interim 
housing should be matched with 
sufficient homelessness prevention 
investment to serve four households (“4”).  

Again, while we are rapidly moving people 
who are unsheltered either directly to 
permanent housing, perhaps with a 
subsidy, or first to interim and then as 
quickly as possible to permanent 
housing, the prevention investment will 
slow down the rate at which people are 
becoming homeless, and over time reach 
equilibrium once the correct balance of 
interim and permanent housing options 
is available in the community. 

Some cities or counties, may need very 
little investment in interim housing, e.g., 
if their unsheltered population is 
relatively small or if they have already 
made marked investment in emergency 
housing options. Those communities 
could choose to focus on rental subsidies 
and permanent housing to house people 
quickly and homelessness prevention to 
stop people from becoming homeless. 
The bottom line is that each community 
can right-size the ratio to reach 
equilibrium, but investing in only one 
option will not be sufficient to reduce 
homelessness in any community in the 
short-term given the high cost of rental 
housing and the time and cost of 
construction and acquisition of 
affordable housing in the Bay Area. 

 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 11 
 

STRATEGIC PILLARS FOR A COMPREHENSIVE RESPONSE 
These efforts are grounded in the RIC’s strategic pillars: to House and Stabilize, Prevent, and enable the region’s 
most vulnerable populations to Thrive (see figure 2). COVID-19 has only highlighted the urgency and action needed to 
address this widening gap. The process of convening the RIC has already yielded results, forging connections and 
building alliances among our members. We will work to identify, recognize, and scale best practices and successful 
models across the region, and propose bold regional solutions. These priorities work in concert with the 1-2-4 
framework to improve the foundations of a healthy, responsive Bay Area homeless services system—one that will 
continue to evolve after addressing the urgent crisis of more than 35,000 Bay Area residents living outdoors. 

 

PRIORITIES FOR IMPLEMENTATION: HOUSE & STABILIZE 
 

Strategic Priority #1: Secure Shelter-In-Place (SIP) housing locations 

Counties across the Bay Area have put in place measures for temporarily housing their at-risk and unhoused 
populations in Shelter-in-Place (SIP) housing, to provide shelter and safety during the COVID-19 pandemic. There is 
broad agreement that individuals who found shelter through these programs should remain housed, be entered into 
Coordinated Entry Systems (CES), and guided first to non-congregate interim and then to permanent housing (in 
some cases these individuals may go directly from SIP hotels to permanent housing if it is available and situationally 
appropriate). Some counties have already begun this process, but others lack a plan for these residents to remain 
housed. In many counties, the lack of interim and permanent housing options will pose a major barrier in achieving 
this goal, pointing to the need to expand housing voucher availability. 

Priority #1 aims to develop a framework for all Bay Area counties that provides a pathway for those who moved 
indoors during the pandemic to transition from interim housing into a range of suitable permanent housing 
solutions. 

Detailed call to action 

• The State of California and the region’s Cities and Counties, with Federal funding and partnership, should 
seek to retain as much of the Shelter-in-Place (SIP) housing (established in response to COVID-19) as 
possible, to be converted post-pandemic into interim housing for unsheltered individuals/households, 
while assisting people to transition quickly to permanent housing (Immediate, Ongoing). 

• The State must recognize that for Project Homekey (acquisition and conversion of hotels to house 
vulnerable populations) to be successful, bond financing for acquisition and rehabilitation projects is 
essential. Therefore, we call for a $10 billion state investment in affordable housing through passage of a 
new bond (SB 5). 

• All Home, in collaboration with regional partners and local jurisdictions, will identify and advocate for 
funding for housing vouchers or other housing solutions at all levels of government, ensuring funds meet 
the demand from each county for interim housing options, flexible rental subsidies, and permanent housing 
solutions needed to prevent people from returning to the streets. 

• Counties should identify locations or acquisition sites and make plans to implement interim housing 
options for individuals who cannot move directly into permanent housing, leveraging recent CEQA 
exemptions for emergency shelters and navigation centers, albeit non-congregate models. 

   



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 12 
 

 

Strategic Priority #2: Streamline State funds & applications for housing 
& homeless services  

Four key state agencies contribute to the State's basic housing efforts, but there is not a well-coordinated plan to 
effectively use their collective financial resources to support affordable housing acquisition and development. 
Applicants for state funds for housing and homeless services are overburdened by duplicative application processes 
with varying timelines, eligibility criteria, and application requirements. The State Auditor commented on this 
complexity in November 2020, calling for the State to simplify its funding pools and award processes.  

Detailed call to action 

• The State of California should consolidate and streamline all affordable housing funding and application 
processes, coordinating between the California Debt Limit Allocation Committee (CDLAC), the Tax Credit 
Allocation Committee (TCAC), the Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD), and the 
California Housing Finance Authority (CalHFA) to eliminate waste and inefficiencies and to reduce the time 
needed to access funding (no later than July 2021).  

• Existing state programs that fund services for people experiencing homelessness should, where possible, 
be consolidated into a joint funding pool with a single application process. This process should be jointly 
administered by California’s Departments of Housing and Community Development (HCD) and Social 
Services (DSS). In cases where consolidation into a single pool is not possible, agencies should align 
standards and funding processes as much as possible, in coordination with HCD and DSS.  

• CDLAC should avoid over-emphasizing cost containment in formulas affecting new construction projects 
especially through its inclusion in both the tiebreaker and as its own category, as it disadvantages 
Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) housing projects, ELI housing projects, and projects located in areas 
with higher construction costs, such as the Bay Area. While we fully support cost-containment and urge 
the State to creatively incentivize lower cost construction, this formula disadvantages housing production 
in parts of the state with some of the highest rates of homelessness. 

• The State should revise the opportunity map methodology to ensure that it does not de-prioritize BIPOC 
communities which tend to be overwhelmingly represented as “low resource” in HCD’s opportunity maps, 
that map high opportunity communities, defined by income, school performance and other factors. While 
we support the concept of encouraging new development in high opportunity areas, communities that have 
suffered historic underinvestment should not be left behind as there are longstanding housing needs that 
must be met. 

 

Strategic Priority #3: Prioritize ELI for housing resources 
 

In its well-intended efforts to serve all Californians, the state’s agencies, with increasing momentum, are targeting 
higher AMI categories, resulting in less funding for housing that is desperately needed to house ELI households. As 
a state and a region where all housing has been under-produced for decades, we must stop pitting the needs of one 
income group against another. What we do know is this – our 9-county Bay Area has produced only 9% of the housing 
units needed for very low income (VLI) households (below 50% AMI) based upon the current Regional Housing Needs 
Allocation (RHNA). This coalition calls for a reversal of this trend and a prioritization of ELI households (below 30% 

   

   



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 13 
 

AMI) in funding for housing. We support appropriate market reforms to increase production at other affordability 
levels including expanding the supply of “missing middle” housing. 

Detailed call to action 

• The State of California should ensure that a significant portion of all publicly funded affordable housing 
projects are inclusive of people with extremely low incomes given that they are at the highest risk of 
becoming homeless, particularly in the San Francisco Bay Area. The State should reverse its trend 
emphasizing an average of 60% of AMI in projects using State funds and ensure that at least 20% of new 
units are reserved for 30% of AMI or below and 20% are reserved for 50% of AMI or below. (Ongoing). 

• In particular, CDLAC should make new housing construction for extremely (ELI) and very-low income (VLI) 
households a priority. It should adjust its current stated preference of 60% of AMI and instead require that 
at least 20% of the units are 30% of AMI or below and 20% are at 50% of AMI or below. 

• Within the Homeless Set-Aside (provision of allocated units) - CDLAC should require that 25% of total units 
(minimum of 15) meet the homeless definition, not just the tax credit units. 
 

Strategic Priority #4: Extend covenants of affordability to preserve 
affordable housing supply and fund ELI tenancy 

A significant portion of the Bay Area’s affordable housing units are not permanently affordable. Instead these units 
have covenants, that if not extended, expire and the housing resets to market rate. This phenomenon displaces 
lower income tenants and puts them at risk of homelessness. Thousands of once affordable units have been lost in 
the Bay Area because affordable covenants were not renewed.  

In addition to the loss of existing affordable housing units, most affordable housing is not designed to be affordable 
by Bay Area residents with extremely low incomes (below 30% AMI). Given our region’s exorbitant housing costs, 
affordable housing developments typically house tenants with household incomes at higher levels (e.g. a 
development’s tenants have incomes that average 60% AMI). Because their incomes are lower, households at or 
below 30% of AMI require deeper subsidies. Similarly, formerly homeless individuals or families may have extremely 
low incomes and may also need supportive services (either short-term or longer-term) to remain housed and 
successfully thrive after having endured the hardship of being homeless for an extended time.  

Detailed call to action 

• The State of California should, with Federal funding and partnership, provide funding to secure affordable 
housing properties for which covenants of affordability are expiring and provide funding for existing 
complexes to more deeply subsidize rents and fund supportive services to serve ELI and formerly homeless 
individuals and families (no later than July 2021). 

  

   



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 14 
 

PRIORITIES FOR IMPLEMENTATION: PREVENT 

Strategic Priority #5: Extend eviction protections 
 

In 2020, the COVID-19 crisis devastated the region, with a disproportionate impact on the lowest income individuals 
and families, particularly BIPOC households. The rent burden – already high –on the low income (< 50% AMI) and 
extremely low income (<30% AMI) populations was exacerbated by COVID-related job losses and financial hardship 
this year. To prevent a massive eviction crisis, eviction moratoriums were enacted at the local and state levels, 
including California’s AB 3088 in September 2020. In late January 2021, the California Legislature passed SB 91 to 
extend the state-wide eviction protection until June 30, 2021. Keeping people in their existing homes is critical to 
reducing spread of the coronavirus. Research led by Dr. Kathryn Leifheit of UCLA estimates that our current 
statewide emergency eviction protection law has already prevented 186,000 COVID-19 cases and 6,000 deaths, so 
we recommend minimally that eviction protections remain in place until at least 60 days after the end of the public 
health emergency is lifted. However, we also know that higher rates of COVID-19 related income and job loss have 
disproportionately impacted ELI households, particularly African American and Latinx households. These impacts 
are likely to linger for some time after the pandemic subsides and the economy begins to stabilize. If history is an 
example, homelessness began to increase three years after the 2008 Great Recession “ended” as unemployment 
remained stubbornly high for Blacks and Latinos. 

Detailed call to action 

• The State extended eviction protections for California’s renters and enacted a framework for its rental 
assistance program with SB 91. The State Legislature should monitor COVID-19 infection rates and rates of 
unemployment for the highest impacted groups. If both remain high that should be taken into account 
before allowing the current state-wide eviction protection to expire on June 30, 2021. The State should 
also take action to close loopholes in the current eviction protections and prevent landlords from evicting 
tenants for lease expirations or minor lease violations until the pandemic health emergency ends.  

• The Biden-Harris Administration acted by Executive Order to direct the Centers for Disease Control (CDC) 
to extend the national eviction moratorium, which it did until March 31, 2021. The CDC later extended that 
eviction protection until June 30, 2021. We call on the CDC to further extend and improve the national 
eviction moratorium. The moratorium must be extended through the duration of the public health 
emergency, and it should be improved to address the shortcomings that have prevented some renters from 
making use of its protections. The moratorium should provide an automatic, universal protection to keep 
more renters throughout the U.S. in their homes and it should apply to all stages of eviction. Federal 
agencies must also actively enforce its protections. An extension to the CDC order could prove to be vital 
to Californians if the CA Legislature fails to extend the state-enacted eviction protections beyond June 30, 
2021. 

• All Counties should enact a universal eviction protections that last until at least 60 days after the County 
lifts its COVID-19 public health emergency (Immediate). Tenants should not be evicted during the pandemic 
for any reason, except for the protection of health and safety. Evictions for lease expirations, minor lease 
violations, move-in or Ellis Act evictions, or anything short of personal safety should not be permitted 
during the pandemic. 

• Counties and cities should consider imposing fines or penalties on property owners that continue to send 
Notices to Pay or Quit or 3-Day eviction notices to tenants for non-payment of rent, if the property owner 

     



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 15 
 

is knowingly using notices to intimidate or confuse tenants in an effort to encourage them to move out, 
despite the fact that non-payment of rent is not currently permissible as a grounds for eviction at this time. 

 

Strategic Priority #6: Accelerate cash payments to people impacted by 
COVID-19 

While high-wage workers have experienced a 4.3 percent decrease in employment during the pandemic, low-wage 
workers have suffered a 26.9 percent decrease, a historically unprecedented divide during a recession. With the 
pandemic wearing on and economic recovery slow, ELI and minority households are being hit hardest, many with 
insufficient income to cover their basic needs as a result of pandemic-related job loss. Substantial evidence shows 
that direct cash assistance is the most effective, responsive, and targeted way to support ELI households and 
prevent them from becoming homeless. Priority #6 advocates for recurring cash payments and enhanced 
unemployment benefits for ELI households at the federal level. In the absence of further federal intervention, 
Priority #6 intends to highlight a path for California to expand and enhance refundable tax credits to provide 
additional income to ELI households. This priority also acknowledges the major intersection between ELI 
households and the unbanked population (individuals not served by banks due to financial or identity barriers) in 
California and aspires to address barriers to households claiming their benefits, so they have the resources needed 
to weather the pandemic. 

Detailed call to action 

• RIC Coalition joins income security advocates, in coalition with the Economic Security Project (initiative 
aimed at bolstering economic security for all Americans), calling for federal recurring cash payments of 
$2,000 quarterly through 2021 or until the employment rate stabilizes. 

• The State of California should approve the Governor's proposed Golden Gate Stimulus of $600 for California 
residents who qualify for the state Earned Income Tax Credit on their 2019 tax returns. 

• Federal government should extend emergency unemployment insurance programs through September 
2021 while providing a $600 per week unemployment insurance supplement. 

• If the Federal effort described above is unsuccessful, state legislators should pass legislation to extend 
and expand refundable tax programs to maximize income for ELI households. Refundable tax programs are 
specifically highlighted because they do not impact household income eligibility for public benefit 
programs. This may include: 

o Removing the earnings requirement and age parameters for the Child Tax Credit (tax credit for 
parents with dependent children) 

o Doubling the California Earned Income Tax Credit (refundable cash back credit for qualified low-to-
moderate income working Californians) for workers without children 

• Address the barriers faced by under- and un-banked populations in accessing benefits by offering no-fee 
checking accounts or other distribution methods. 

 

 

 

     



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 16 
 

Strategic Priority #7: Provide targeted rental assistance to those 
impacted by COVID-19, who are most vulnerable to homelessness 

 
Priority #7 aims to prevent the impending wave of evictions that could occur when the moratoriums eventually are 
lifted. We must ensure that the number of people becoming homeless in the Bay Area does not accelerate due to 
pandemic-related income loss and the inability to keep up with rent. SB 91 averted an immediate crisis by extending 
eviction protections until June 30, 2021. California also received $2.6 billion in federal rental assistance from the in 
the form of U.S. Treasury Emergency Rental Assistance Program (ERAP) funds. Counties and cities with populations 
of >200,000 received roughly $1.1 billion and the State received roughly $1.5 billion. But still, millions of California 
renters will be burdened by amassed rental arrearages, small claims court judgments and lingering unemployment 
that will hobble them financially for an extended period of time.  

Detailed call to action 

• The State of California created a block grant program to distribute its $1.5 billion portion in new COVID-
response rental assistance. Although the framework for the State’s program is complex, for tenants who 
have cooperative landlords it offers an opportunity not only to have the program pay the landlord 80% of the 
rent arrearage, but to have the other 20% forgiven if the landlord wishes to participate. However, for tenants 
whose landlords refuse to participate, it permits only 25% of their arrearage to be paid. The State has made 
an effort to prioritize based on equity and to households earning at or below 50% AMI. The recent Biden-
Harris “American Rescue Act” package included an additional $30 billion in ERAP funds. We urge the State to 
improve upon its current framework for rental assistance (enacted in SB 91) to ensure equal outcomes for all 
tenants and to implement the targeting strategies outlined below. 

• The statutory language that authorized the ERAP allocation allows assistance to be provided to households 
earning up to 80%AMI, but indicates that households at or below 50% of AMI as well as those which have a 
household member who has been unemployed for 90 days or more should be prioritized. With hundreds of 
thousands of Californians behind on rent, there will be a gravitational pull to assist people at the full range of 
allowable income levels. However, in order to prevent a massive surge in homelessness later in 2021-2022, 
rental assistance must be targeted to those most at risk of homelessness. Local rental assistance programs 
should prioritize the following: 

o ELI households (<30% AMI)  

o Households with severe rent burden (>50% of income spent on rent) 

o Households or individuals who have had a previous experience of homelessness  

o Census tracts or zip codes with high rates of housing insecurity or homelessness, high rates of 
eviction, high rates of COVID-19 infection, high rates of poverty and/or a high area deprivation index 

o Hard to reach communities (e.g., those who have language barriers and people who are in informal 
living arrangements); and  

o Groups that don’t have access to other benefit programs (e.g., undocumented immigrants) 

• Any new or expanded rental assistance program should include the following elements: 

o Low-barrier flexible cash assistance, including acceptance of self-certifications regarding income, 
housing and, employment status. Programs should permit payment directly to the household if the 

     



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 17 
 

landlord refuses to accept rental payment from the program or fails to respond within the prescribed 
time period 

o Access to landlord mediation or legal services as needed 

o Effective and culturally relevant outreach: 

▪ Partner with, and build capacity of, BIPOC led community organizations located in and serving 
impacted communities while expanding the ecosystem of organizations providing program 
services 

▪ Co-design outreach processes with CBOs that serve the hardest hit communities and offer 
access at common intersections with people at-risk of homelessness including food 
pantries, schools/day care, housing court, community health clinics, institutional 
discharging or correctional system release. Coordinate with COVID-19 vaccination outreach 
efforts to maximize efficiency. 

▪ Work with community groups representing tenants and people who have experienced 
homelessness, to inform prioritization and policies.  

• Tackle racial disparity 

o Collect and publicly report disaggregated data on households served by race, ethnicity, and zip code. 

o Remove barriers that disproportionately impact BIPOC: accept applications by all methods - online, 
phone, in-person; do not limit assistance to one-time only; be explicit on all materials that 
information regarding immigration status will not be asked for nor shared at any time during the 
process. 

• Fill gaps caused by ERAP funding constraints with other sources of public (e.g., CDBG-CV or ESG-CV) or 
private funds to offer more holistic housing stabilization plans to families and individuals. 

See “Local Strategies to Protect Tenants and Prevent Homelessness in Bay Area COVID-19 Emergency Rental 
Assistance Programs (ERAPs)” for more detailed recommendations. 

Strategic Priority #8: Accelerate targeted, data-informed regional 
prevention model 

Prior to the pandemic, the Bay Area had the distinction of having more than 35,000 people who were homeless. With 
massive job and income loss among low wage workers due to the pandemic, many of whom were severely rent-
burdened, we can expect that poverty and homelessness will rise in 2021. In 2019, two to three people were becoming 
homeless for every one person who was successfully assisted to move from homelessness to housing in the Bay 
Area. We desperately need a regional homelessness prevention system to slow down the rate at which people are 
becoming homeless; this starts by coordinating resources and services within the region. Priority #8 aims to build 
upon prevention efforts and infrastructure that already exist and to create a program for coordinated service 
delivery. All Home has launched a pilot in three cities - Oakland, Fremont and San Francisco - to facilitate a research 
and data-informed approach that focuses on using new federal ERAP funding to target those who are most 
vulnerable to homelessness. The pilot is intended to extend into Contra Costa County later in 2021, in advance of full 
implementation and coverage of all nine Bay Area counties within three years. Ultimately, the goal is to blend public 
and private funds and bring about a higher degree of coordination among anti-eviction/displacement, rental subsidy, 
homelessness prevention, diversion, and rapid-rehousing programs in the region. 

     

https://drive.google.com/file/d/1zc0JbB00JoNhH9rR8j7FLO9D2y9tLnDQ/view?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/1zc0JbB00JoNhH9rR8j7FLO9D2y9tLnDQ/view?usp=sharing


 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 18 
 

Detailed call to action 

• Since September 2021, All Home in partnership with RIC members and others has embarked on a consensus-
building design process to launch its homelessness prevention pilot. In order to maximize the opportunity to 
align federal ERAP funding with homelessness prevention efforts, All Home accelerated its regional 
homelessness prevention efforts to launch by April 2021. The pilot is a work in progress to build consistency 
in best practices for risk assessment and service delivery, using a common data platform and evaluation 
framework. Initially the regional homelessness prevention program model will include the following services: 

o Financial assistance – flexible cash assistance, rental arrears, rental assistance, security deposit, 
move-in expenses, reunification or relocation expenses, transportation expenses 

o Eviction prevention/legal assistance 

o Utility assistance 

o Housing problem-solving  

o Landlord mediation and connecting residents to advocacy organizations  

o Linkages to other community resources and public benefit programs 

• As the program reaches its full implementation, the following services will also be provided: 

o Assistance with housing search, placement, and stabilization, including limited term rental subsidies 
and case management 

o Financial counseling 

o Income stabilization through workforce development partnerships 

• Implement a three-county pilot regional homelessness prevention system that is rolled out with an eye 
toward regional expansion to all nine Bay Area counties. The pilot offers the following elements: 

o Emphasis on reducing racial and ethnic disparities among households that are experiencing 
homelessness for the first time through targeted financial assistance and program design:  

▪ Targeting resources to racial/ethnic groups facing high rates of homelessness (in the Bay 
Area, Black, Indigenous, Latinx and Pacific Islander communities) and groups that don’t have 
access to other benefit programs. 

▪ Meeting non-traditional needs, for instance offering interventions that stabilize support 
networks or kinship networks, as defined by marginalized communities, to include chosen 
families. 

▪ Addressing funding/program gaps that exist for undocumented immigrants. 

▪ Ensure effective and culturally relevant outreach as described above in Strategic Priority #7. 

▪ Reducing barriers to long-term success by connecting households to economic mobility 
programs and eliminating limitations on “one-time only” assistance because an ELI 
household may encounter one or more periods of economic shock on the way to getting back 
on their feet. 

o Common program elements as discussed above. 

o New, web-based data platform for applicants and service providers which includes: 

▪ Online financial assistance application portal 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 19 
 

▪ Evidence-based risk assessment tool that promotes effective and efficient targeting of 
services to those who are at highest risk3 of homelessness. 

o Back-end service provider module for case management, management approvals and fund 
disbursements. 

o Consistency in staff training in housing problem-solving/diversion techniques and learning 
collaboratives to promote cross- county collaboration and sharing of useful resolution ideas. 

• Evaluate program efficacy of the initial three-county level programs and adapt as necessary to expand to the 
regional scale within three years.  

• All Home, in collaboration with regional partners and local jurisdictions, will work to identify and collaborate 
with a regional entity with the capacity to manage a regional homelessness prevention system for the long-
term. In 2020, the Bay Area Housing and Financing Authority (BAHFA) was established by the Association of 
Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC. BAHFA is positioned 
to provide a powerful new set of financing and policy tools to improve housing affordability and may be well 
suited to play this role in the future. 

• Combine public and private funding streams to maximize the prevention system’s function and flexibility At 
the federal, state and local levels, there are many programs that support homelessness prevention, each 
having slightly different eligibility and other requirements – Emergency Solutions Grants (ESG and ESG-CV), 
Community Development Block Grants (CDBG and CDBG-CV), new U.S. Treasury Emergency Rental 
Assistance Program (ERAP), State Homeless, Housing, Assistance and Prevention (HHAP), CalWorks 
Homeless Assistance Program, local tax measure funds that are required to be spent on homelessness 
prevention. These funding streams should be streamlined so that they can be used more flexibly and 
holistically to keep people housed. Currently, private and philanthropic funds are used to fill gaps and provide 
the flexibility for the program to meet each household’s needs. The goal of a regional homelessness 
prevention program is to leverage these funds in the creation of a public-private partnership that weaves 
together a stronger, more viable safety net that is truly available and capable of preventing a household from 
becoming homeless or quickly assisting with the resources necessary to find alternative housing, regardless 
of where one lives in the Bay Area. 

  

 
3 Female Head of Household, pregnancy, child younger than two, history of public assistance, eviction threat, high mobility in 
last year, history of protective services, high conflict in household, disruptions as a child (e.g. foster care, shelter history as 
youth), shelter history as an adult, recent shelter application, seeking to reintegrate into community from an institution, high 
number of shelter applications. 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 20 
 

IMPACT METRICS & TRACKING 
We have developed a series of impact metrics to track progress against our 8 strategic priorities, while 
systematically advancing All Home’s vision and informing forthcoming work. These metrics will be reviewed on a 
regular cadence and progress will be shared back to counties, stakeholders, and RIC members.  

• Overall- Reduce unsheltered homelessness by 75% by 2024, overall homelessness by 75% by 2030  

• System flow– % of new episodes, PIT count, eviction rate, # of days between shelter and permanent exits 

• Availability- # of interim housing units, # of permanent housing solution units, # of prevention interventions 
by 2024 and 2030, utilization rate over time (match of resources available to interventions needed in each 
category  

• Diversity- Homelessness population segmentation and population comparison by race/gender/age to 
reduce disparity  

• Employment- ELI unemployment rate, income levels 

• Data- Consistency in format and metrics across region, clear indicators of coordinated efforts among Bay 
Area counties 

• Revenue- Match of funding available with needs to implement priorities 

Furthermore, we will track stakeholder perceptions of progress through an annual survey to RIC members to 
measure the extent to which they believe goals are being met. We will also convene counties on a quarterly basis, 
and other stakeholder groups on an ad hoc basis, to review progress and identify barriers to be mitigated. We will 
also draw on those with lived experience to understand their perceptions of system efficacy (access to resources, 
employment opportunities, etc.) and provide real-time tracking. 

HomeBase research finds that a regional data sharing system would enhance the ability of jurisdictions and care 
providers to conduct local planning, measure outcomes and investment impacts, and support care and support 
coordination. Data enrichment options that allow identifiable client-level data sharing across jurisdictions would 
have an even greater impact by creating opportunities to coordinate across systems of care—ensuring individuals 
have continuity without having to restart the process of seeking help every time they transition to a new location.  

Therefore, it may be helpful to establish a regional data sharing system utilizing existing research and tools 
developed by Homebase to enhance the ability of jurisdictions and care providers to conduct local planning, measure 
outcomes and investment impacts, and support care and support coordination across cities and counties. 

Cumulatively, advancement across these metrics will enable the broader social change we are committed to 
enacting: increasing racial equity, inclusivity of all communities, greater economic and social mobility, shifting our 
paradigm to recognize ELI people’s value, and highlighting regionalism as imperative to driving progress. 

 

  



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 21 
 

 
LETTER FROM THE CO-CHAIRS 
The Regional Impact Council (RIC) convened in 2020, when our members - from across the Bay Area - organized 
around the belief that homelessness can be rare, brief, and non-recurring for those that experience it. We believe a 
coordinated regional response is needed to advance system level changes to solve poverty, housing insecurity, racial 
inequity and homelessness crisis facing our region and state. 

The COVID-19 pandemic has exacerbated the already large chasm in economic equality and mobility in the Bay Area, 
impacting vulnerable communities that are disproportionately Black, brown, Indigenous and low income. As a region 
our experience of COVID-19 is unequal. For affluent professional workers, the recession’s direct economic impact 
has been minimal. Indeed, the wealth of some in the professional class has gone up since the pandemic. For Black, 
brown and Indigenous communities and extremely low-income populations, this recession is worse than the Great 
Financial Crisis of 2008-2010. The true impact of historic unemployment, racial injustice, and the continued 
economic pressure on small businesses will be an uphill challenge. The magnitude of these changes has forced us 
to explore systemic solutions previously deemed too bold. We must seek new solutions and advance them more 
quickly than what the Bay Area’s jurisdictions have tried before. 

The RIC complements existing efforts around homelessness and housing by bringing together key stakeholders, and 
policymakers across a diversity of communities and sectors including representatives from the state legislature, 
local government, non-profit organizations ’s the business community and private philanthropy with their collective 
assets to achieve population-level regional outcomes. 

The urgency has never been greater, and we are eager to get to work. We view the Bay Area’s regional response to 
the COVID-19 pandemic as an example of what our region can accomplish when we join together to address a shared 
challenge. After the current public health crisis, we will remain committed to our goals: house and stabilize those 
experiencing or at risk of homelessness, prevent future episodes of homelessness, and create economic prosperity 
across the region so that ELI individuals and families can thrive in the Bay Area. 

 

 
 
Derecka Mehrens 
Chief Executive Officer, 
Working Partnerships USA 

 
 
Jonathan Fearn 
Senior Development Director, 
Greystar 

 
 
Joshua Simon 
Chief Executive Officer, East 
Bay Asian Location 
Development Corporation 

 
 
Sherilyn Adams 
Executive Director 
Larkin Street Youth Services 

 

  

 
INTRODUCTION TO THE REGIONAL IMPACT COUNCIL 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 22 
 

RIC MEMBERS 

 
  
.  

  

Amie Fishman, Executive Director, Non-Profit Housing  
Association of Northern California 
Andreas Cluver, Secretary-Treasurer, Alameda County  
Building Trades Council 
Ariane Hogan, Associate Director of Local  
Government Affairs, Genentech 
Belia Ramos, Supervisor, Napa County 5th District 
Candace Andersen, Supervisor, Contra Costa County  
Cindy Chavez, Supervisor, Santa Clara County  
Dave Cortese, State Senator, California 
David Chiu, State Assemblymember, California 
Diana Reddy, City Councilmember, Redwood City 
Diane Burgis, Chair, Board of Supervisors,  
Contra Costa County 
Eddy Zheng, Founder & President, New Breath Foundation 
Erin Connor, Manager, Cisco Crisis Response 
Hydra Mendoza, VP, Chief of Strategic Relationships  
Office of the Chair and CEO, Salesforce 
Jake MacKenzie, Board Member, Greenbelt Alliance 
Jennifer Loving, Chief Executive Officer, Destination Home 
Jesse Arreguin, Mayor, City of Berkeley; President,  
Association of Bay Area Governments 
Jim Spering, Supervisor, Solano County 
Jim Green, Senior Vice President, Government Affairs  
and Public Policy, Salesforce 
Jim Wunderman, CEO, Bay Area Council 

REGIONAL IMPACT COUNCIL MEMBERS 

Derecka Mehrens, Chief Executive Officer, Working Partnerships USA 

Jonathan Fearn, Senior Development Director, Greystar 

Joshua Simon, Chief Executive Officer, EBALDC 

Sherilyn Adams, Executive Director, Larkin Street Youth Services 

The RIC is a coalition across the nine-county Bay Area. The council includes 85 leaders that work in state and local 
legislation, direct service provision, affordable housing, labor, economic mobility, racial equity and private sector 
businesses. 
 
Our collective goal: Share, develop and mobilize against regional solutions to House and Stabilize, Prevent, and 
enable our most vulnerable populations to Thrive. 

Keith Carson, Supervisor, Alameda County District 5 
Ken Cole, Director, Human Services Agency, San Mateo 
County 
Libby Schaaf, Mayor, City of Oakland 
Liz Ortega-Toro, Executive Secretary-Treasurer, 
Alameda Labor Council 
London Breed, Mayor, City and County of San Francisco 
Matt Franklin, President, MidPen Housing Corporation 
Melissa Jones, Executive Director, Bay Area Regional 
Health Inequities Initiative 
Nicole Taylor, President & CEO, Silicon Valley 
Community Foundation 
Robert Powers, General Manager, BART 
Rosanne Foust, President & CEO, San Mateo County 
Economic Development Association (SAMCEDA) 
Sam Liccardo, Mayor, City of San Jose 
Scott Weiner, State Senate, California 
Susan Gorin, Supervisor, Sonoma County  
Therese McMillan, Executive Director, Association of 
Bay Area Governments (ABAG)/Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) 
Warren Slocum, Supervisor, San Mateo County  
 

CO-CHAIRS 

STEERING COMMITTEE 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 23 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Angela Jenkins, Director of Strategic Initiatives, Kaiser Permanente 
Lindsay Haddix, Housing Initiatives Program Manager, Facebook 
Marc Trotz, Consultant 
Margot Kushel, MD, UCSF Benioff Homelessness and Housing Initiative 
Ophelia Basgal, Vice-Chair, San Francisco Foundation Board 
Tramecia Garner, Associate Director for Housing and residential Programs, Swords to Plowshares 
Will Dominie, Impact Manager, BARHII 
William Rogers, CEO, SF-Marin-San Mateo Goodwill 
 
 

WORKGROUP CO-MODERATORS 

Adrian Covert, Vice President of Public Policy, Bay Area Council 
Alan Dones, Managing Partner, Strategic Urban Development Alliance 
Amy Sawyer, Policy Advisor on Homelessness. Office of Mayor London Breed 
Brandy Jenkins-League, Program Manager, Bay Area Community Services (BACS) 
Bruce Ives, CEO, LifeMoves 
Carolina Reid, Assistant Professor, Department of City and Regional Planning, UCBerkeley 
Cynthia Nagendra, Executive Director, UCSF Benioff Homelessness and Housing Initiative 
Daniel Saver, Assistant Director for Housing and Local Planning, MTC/ABAG 
Darnell Cadette, Director, Community, Chan Zuckerberg Initiative 
David Low, Policy & Communications Director, Destination Home 
Donna Allen, Pastor, New Revelation Church 
Heather Hood, Vice President and Market Leader -Northern California, Enterprise Community Partners 
Jackie Downing, Executive Director, Crankstart 
Jacky Morales-Ferrand, Director of Housing, City of San José 
Jamie Almanza, Executive Director, Bay Area Community Services 
Katherine Harasz, Executive Director, Santa Clara County Housing Authority 
Kelly Dearman, Executive Director, SF in Home Supportive Services Public Authority 
Kerry Abbott, Director, Homeless Care and Coordination, Alameda County 
Kris Stadelman, Director, NOVA Workforce Board 
Lavonna Martin, Director, Health, Housing, and Homeless Services, Contra Costa County 
Louise Rogers, Chief, San Mateo County Health System 
Malcolm Yeung, Executive Director, Chinatown Community Development Center 
Maryann Leshin, Deputy Director, Housing and Community Development Department, City of Oakland 
Michael Gause, Ending Homelessness Program Manager, Sonoma County  
Nevada Merriman, Director of Policy, MidPen Housing Corporation 
Pedro Galvao, Policy Director, Non-Profit Housing Association of Northern California (NPH) 
Peter Radu, Homeless Policy Director, Office of the Mayor, City of Oakland 
Randy Tsuda, President & Chief Executive Officer, Alta Housing 
Shola Olatoye, Director, Housing & Community Development, City of Oakland 
Sparky Harlan, CEO, Bill Wilson Center 
Tim Chan, Group Manager - Station Area Planning, BART 
Vaughn Villaverde, Associate Director of Health Policy, Working Partnerships USA 
Vivian Wan, Chief Operating Officer, Abode Services 
William Pickel, Chief Executive Officer, Brilliant Corners 
Zak Franet, Youth Policy & Advisory Committee Member, City and County of San Francisco 

TECHNICAL COMMITTTEE  



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 24 
 

 

 

 

 

Tomiquia Moss, Chief Executive Officer 
Ken Kirkey, RIC Project Lead, Chief Partnership Officer 
Charlie Sun, Chief of Staff  
Gail Gilman, Chief Strategy Officer 
Jay Banfield, Chief Economic Mobility Officer 
Joanne Karchmer, Chief Impact Officer 
Terrance Thompson, Director, Regional Homelessness Prevention System 
 
 

ALL HOME STAFF 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 25 
 

 
The Co-Chairs wish to acknowledge the invaluable contributions of everyone that has contributed to 
developing the Regional Action Plan and that continue to support the Regional Impact Council. 

 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 26 
 

 
AB – 15 - COVID-19 relief: Tenancy: Tenant Stabilization Act of 2021 

This bill would extend the definition of “COVID-19 rental debt” as unpaid rent or any other unpaid financial obligation of 
a tenant that came due between March 1, 2020, and December 31, 2021. The bill would also extend the repeal date of the 
act to January 1, 2026. The bill would make other conforming changes to align with these extended dates. By extending 
the repeal date of the act, the bill would expand the crime of perjury and create a state-mandated local program. (CA 
legislature) 

AB – 16 - Tenant, Small Landlord, and Affordable Housing Provider Stabilization Act of 2021 

This bill would state the intent of the Legislature to enact the Tenant, Small Landlord, and Affordable Housing Provider 
Stabilization Act of 2021 to address the long-term financial impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on renters, small 
landlords, and affordable housing providers, ensure ongoing housing stability for tenants at risk of eviction, and 
stabilize rental properties at risk of foreclosure. This bill would include legislative findings and declarations in support 
of the intended legislation. (CA legislature) 

AB – 3088 - Tenancy: rental payment default: Mortgage forbearance: state of emergency: COVID-19 

This bill, the Tenant, Homeowner, and Small Landlord Relief and Stabilization Act of 2020, would, among other things, 
until January 1, 2023, additionally apply those protections to a first lien mortgage or deed of trust that is secured by 
residential real property that is occupied by a tenant, contains no more than four dwelling units, and meets certain 
criteria, including that a tenant occupying the property is unable to pay rent due to a reduction in income resulting from 
the novel coronavirus. (CA legislature) 

AMI - Average Monthly Income 

Most federal and State housing assistance programs set maximum incomes for eligibility to live in assisted housing, 
and maximum rents and housing costs that may be charged to eligible residents, usually based on their incomes. HUD’s 
limits are based on surveys of local area median income (AMI) 

CA BCSHA - California Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency 

The Business, Consumer Services and Housing Agency assists and educates consumers regarding the licensing, 
regulation, and enforcement of professionals and businesses in California. 

CalHFA – California Housing Finance Agency 

Established in 1975, CalHFA was chartered as the state's affordable housing lender. The Agency's Multifamily Division 
finances affordable rental housing through partnerships with jurisdictions, developers and more, while its Single Family 
Division provides first mortgage loans and down payment assistance to first-time homebuyers. 

CEQA – CEQA – California Env. Quality Act 

CEQA, or the California Environmental Quality Act, is a statute that requires state and local agencies to identify the 
significant environmental impacts of their actions and to avoid or mitigate those impacts, if feasible. 

 
GLOSSARY 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 27 
 

The purpose of CEQA is to: Disclose to the public the significant environmental effects of a proposed discretionary 
project, through the preparation of an Initial Study (IS), Negative Declaration (ND), or Environmental Impact Report (EIR). 

(CA Office of Planning and Research) 

CDBG-CV – CARES Relief Community Development Block Grants 

Congress provided $5 billion in the CARES Act for the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) program to states, 
metropolitan cities, urban counties, and insular areas. (HUD) 

CDLAC – California Debt Limit Allocation Committee 

CDLAC’s programs are used to finance affordable housing developments for low-income Californians, build solid waste 
disposal and waste recycling facilities, and to finance industrial development projects (CA State Treasurer’s Office) 

ESG-CV – CARES Relief Emergency Solutions Grants 

These special ESG-CV funds are to be used to prevent, prepare for, and respond to the coronavirus pandemic (COVID-
19) among individuals and families who are homeless or receiving homeless assistance. The funds will also support 
additional homeless assistance and homelessness prevention activities to mitigate the impacts of COVID-19. (HUD) 

HCD - California Department of Housing and Community Development 

The California Department of Housing and Community Development awards loans and grants to public and private 
housing developers, nonprofit agencies, cities, counties, state and federal partners. This money supports the 
construction, acquisition, rehabilitation, and preservation of affordable rental and ownership homes, provides 
permanent supportive housing options as well as stable, safe shelter for those experiencing homelessness. (HCD) 

HUD – US Department of Housing and Urban Development 

LI, VLI, ELI – Low Income, Very Low Income and Extremely Low Income 

Low-income applicants earn less than 80% of the area median 

Very low-income applicants earn less than 50% of the area median 

Extremely low-income earn less than 30% of the area median 

NGO – Non-government Organization 

PHA – Public Housing Authority 

The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) administers Federal aid to local housing agencies (HAs) 
that manage the housing for low-income residents at rents they can afford. HUD furnishes technical and professional 
assistance in planning, developing and managing these developments. (HUD) 

PSH – Permanent Supportive Housing 

Permanent Supportive Housing (PSH) is a model that combines low-barrier affordable housing, health care, and 
supportive services to help individuals and families lead more stable lives. PSH typically targets people who are 



 

REGIONAL ACTION PLAN | 28 
 

homeless or otherwise unstably housed, experience multiple barriers to housing, and are unable to maintain housing 
stability without supportive services. (National Health Care for the Homeless Center) 

TCAC – California Tax Credit Allocation Committee  

The California Tax Credit Allocation Committee (CTCAC) administers the federal and state Low-Income Housing Tax 
Credit Programs. Both programs were created to promote private investment in affordable rental housing for low-
income Californians. (CA State Treasurer’s Office) 

Section 8 / HCV – Section 8 Housing Vouchers 

The housing choice voucher program is the federal government's major program for assisting very low-income families, 
the elderly, and the disabled to afford decent, safe, and sanitary housing in the private market. Since housing 
assistance is provided on behalf of the family or individual, participants are able to find their own housing, including 
single-family homes, townhouses and apartments. Expanded rental assistance like the Housing Choice Voucher (HCV) 
program is a substantial component of any strategy to address the severe housing shortage and instability faced by ELI 
renters. Seventy-three percent of current HCV recipients are extremely low-income (HUD, 2018). 



Public

$7,382,050.00 

$2,462,215.00 

$4,911,254.00 

$9,149,414.00 

$715,847.34 

$5,444,405.00 

$2,162,215.00 

$5,433,961.00 

$2,378,164.00 
$952,900.68 

 $-

 $1,000,000.00

 $2,000,000.00

 $3,000,000.00

 $4,000,000.00

 $5,000,000.00

 $6,000,000.00

 $7,000,000.00

 $8,000,000.00

 $9,000,000.00

 $10,000,000.00

Emergency Shelter Homelessness Prevention Immediate Street Conditions and Hygiene Permanent Housing Staffing/Infrastructure

FY2023 Adopted and FY2023 Projected Spend Down

Sum of FY 2023 Projected Sum of FY 2023 Adopted

Emergency Shelter, 
$5,444,405.00 , 33%

Homelessness Prevention, 
$2,162,215.00 , 13%

Immediate Street Conditions 
and Hygiene, $5,433,961.00 , 

33%

Permanent Housing, 
$2,378,164.00 , 15%

Staffing/Infrastructure, 
$952,900.68 , 6%

FY2023 Projection based on Category of Spending



Public

$6,454,801.00 

$1,162,215.00 

$5,671,149.00 

$2,917,494.00 

$879,584.06 

$7,525,488.00 

$3,162,215.00 

$5,500,647.00 

$7,417,494.00 

$879,584.06 

 $-

 $1,000,000.00

 $2,000,000.00

 $3,000,000.00

 $4,000,000.00

 $5,000,000.00

 $6,000,000.00

 $7,000,000.00

 $8,000,000.00

Emergency Shelter Homelessness Prevention Immediate Street Conditions and Hygiene Permanent Housing Staffing/Infrastructure

FY2024 Adopted Budget & FY2024 Staff Recommendations

Sum of FY 2024 Adopted Sum of FY 2024 Staff Recs

Emergency Shelter, 
$7,525,488.00 , 31%

Homelessness Prevention, 
$3,162,215.00 , 13%

Immediate Street Conditions 
and Hygiene, $5,500,647.00 , 

22%

Permanent Housing, 
$7,417,494.00 , 30%

Staffing/Infrastructure, 
$879,584.06 , 4%

FY2024 Staff Recommendations by Category of Spending



Public

Program FY 2023 
Adopted

FY 2023 
Projected

FY 2024 
Adopted

FY 2024 Staff 
Recs

CMO: Homeless Services Coordinator 
$         196,348 $           196,348 $         202,899 $           202,899 

Finance: Accountant II  
$         178,858 $           178,858 $         193,441 $           193,441 

HHCS: 50% Senior Management Analyst 
$         113,085 $           113,085 $         116,560 $           116,560 

HHCS: 2 Year Limited Term Community Services 
Specialist II 

$         207,439 $           103,719 $         209,513 $           209,513 

Training and Evaluation 
$         133,334 $                      - $         133,334 $           133,334 

One-Time Use of Measure P for Nexus Community 
Programs 

$           23,837 $             23,837 $           23,837 $             23,837 

Reimagining Public Safety: Conduct a service needs 
assessment based on 911 and non-911 calls for 
service, dispatch, and response and capacity 
assessment of crisis response and crisis-related 
services 

$         100,000 $           100,000 $                      - $                      -

Public facilities improvement $                      - $                      - $                      - $           800,000 

TOTAL $         952,901 $         715,847 $         879,584 $         1,679,584 

Staffing Infrastructure



Public

Program FY 2023 
Adopted

FY 2023 
Projected

FY 2024 
Adopted

FY 2024 Staff 
Recs

Dorothy Day House Shelter 
$             566,000 $            566,000 $           566,000 $            566,000 

Pathways STAIR Center 
$          2,499,525 $         2,499,525 $        2,499,525 $         2,499,525 

Berkeley Food and Housing Project - Men's Housing 
Program 

$                        - $                       - $                      - $            170,502 

YSA Tiny Home $               78,000 $               78,000 $             78,000 $               78,000 
Shelter at 742 Grayson Street $          1,011,900 $         1,011,900 $                      - $                       -
Shelter at 1720 San Pablo Ave Lease $                        - $            883,200 $           908,796 $            908,796 
Shelter at 1720 San Pablo Ave Supportive Services $                        - $            612,559 $           950,000 $            950,000 
Berkeley Emergency Storm Shelter (Winter Shelter) $             186,500 $            216,201 $           350,000 $            350,000 
Old City Hall Sprinkler system $                        - $                       - $                      - $            400,000 
Inclement Weather Shelter $                        - $            412,185 $                      - $            412,185 
One-Time Use of Measure P for Nexus Community 
Programs 

$             882,480 $            882,480 $           882,480 $            882,480 

Reimagining Public Safety:  Funding to organizations 
for Respite from Gender/Domestic Violence 

$             220,000 $            220,000 $           220,000 $            220,000 

701 Harrison Transition - Site Security $                        - $                       - $                      - $               88,000 

TOTAL $               5,444,405 $              7,382,050 $            6,454,801 $              7,525,488 

Emergency Shelter



Public

Program FY 2023 Adopted FY 2023 Projected FY 2024 Adopted FY 2024 Staff 
Recs

COVID-19 Emergency Housing Assistance -
Housing Retention Program (EDC) 

$          1,000,000 $         1,300,000 $           - $         2,000,000 

Anti-Displacement Programs (Legal Assistance, 
Housing Retention Program, Flexible Housing 
Funds) (100k to BACS HRC; 275K to EDC and 
remaining to EBCLC) - tranferred to U1 

$             900,000 $            900,000 $           900,000 $            900,000 

One-Time Use of Measure P for Nexus 
Community Programs 

$             262,215 $            262,215 $           262,215 $            262,215 

TOTAL $             2,162,215 $          2,462,215 $          1,162,215 $         3,162,215 

Homelessness Prevention



Public

Program FY 2023 
Adopted

FY 2023 
Projected

FY 2024 
Adopted

FY 2024 Staff 
Recs

Fire: 5150 Response & Transport  
$          1,321,605 $         1,321,605 $        1,556,857 $         1,556,857 

Dorothy Day House Drop In 
$             182,000 $            182,000 $           182,000 $            182,000 

Coordinated Entry System (BACs HRC) $          1,000,000 $            150,000 $        1,000,000 $            829,498 
BDIC Locker Program $               50,000 $               50,000 $             50,000 $               50,000 
LifeLong Medical - Street Medicine $             525,000 $            525,000 $           525,000 $            525,000 
DBA- Homeless Outreach Worker $               40,000 $               40,000 $             40,000 $               40,000 
Downtown Streets Team $             225,000 $            225,000 $           225,000 $            225,000 
Homeless Response Team $             918,149 $            918,149 $           920,085 $            920,085 
Portable Toilets  $               96,000 $               96,000 $             96,000 $               96,000 
One-Time Use of Measure P for Nexus Community Programs $             976,207 $            976,207 $           976,207 $            976,207 
Reimagining Public Safety-Expand Downtown Streets Teams 
as placement for low-level violations  

$               50,000 $               50,000 $             50,000 $               50,000 

Equitable Clean Streets $            327,293 $                       -

Expand the scope of services for the Downtown Streets Team 
to address the need for enhanced services around commercial 
and industrial areas in the Gilman District twice weekly 

$               50,000 $               50,000 $             50,000 $               50,000 

TOTAL $          5,433,961 $            4,911,254 $              5,671,149 $            5,500,647 

Immediate Street Conditions and Hygiene



Public

Program
FY 2023 
Adopted

FY 2023 
Projected

FY 2024 
Adopted

FY 2024 Staff 
Recs

No Place Like Home - Scattered Unit Supportive Services 
$                   128,750 $                               - $                105,000 $                  105,000 

Hope Center - Mental Health Services 
$                     71,250 $                    71,250 $                   95,000 $                    95,000 

Permanent Housing Subsidies / Shallow Subsidies $               1,600,000 $                               - $            1,600,000 $              1,600,000 
Project Homekey Reservation (round 3) $                                - $              8,500,000 $                               -
1367 University Avenue Step Up Housing Project $                                - $                               - $                539,330 $                  539,330 
Russell Street Residence Acquisition $                                - $                               - $                             - $              4,500,000 
One-Time Use of Measure P for Nexus Community Programs $                   578,164 $                  578,164 $                578,164 $                  578,164 

TOTAL $               2,378,164 $              9,149,414 $            2,917,494 $              7,417,494 

Permanent Housing



   
City of Berkeley Monitor Evaluation Summary 

 
Agency Name:   Bay Area Community Services (BACS) 
Program Name:  Stair Navigation Center, North County HRC  
Contract Period:  7/1/19-6/30/23 

 
1. Agency Strengths/ Other accomplishments during the contract period (FY20-FY23): 

BACS has improved operations while maximizing organization productivity.  They have 
provided services and programs that are focused on achieving results that lead to client 
success. The agency collaborates closely with Berkeley homeless services agencies 
recognizing the importance in providing services and essential programming that meets 
the needs of the community. Over the past couple of years, BACS has been flexible in 
responding to changing and challenging, especially throughout the COVID-19 pandemic. 
Moreover, BACS took affirmative steps in hiring small minority owned business as 
exemplified through their contract with Extreme Janitorial at STAIR Center.   

BACS operates the Stair Navigation Center as a low barrier shelter that utilizes a harm 
reduction model.  The current contract period (FY20-FY23) encompasses more than 2 ½ 
years of delivering services during the COVID-19 pandemic.  During this time, the STAIR 
shelter census was reduced by approximately 50% to maintain 6’ social distancing per 
CDC and local guidance.  The City partnered with BACS to plan, prepare and respond to 
COVID-19.  Agency staff: 1) participated in weekly County and monthly City shelter calls 
covering COVID updates (CDC, CDPH and local guidance) and best practices; 2) 
provided COVID-19 education to participants; 3) distributed PPE; 4) referred positive 
cases to the County’s Isolation Hotels; 5) provides weekly COVID-19 testing and 6) 
hosts monthly vaccine clinics.  BACS Stair continues to provide many of these services 
and is increasing the number of beds available to accommodate more people.  It expects 
to reach pre-COVID bed capacity level by May 2023.    

2. Have agency financial reports been submitted on time?   
 
Over the past year, BACS has improved its timeliness in submitting reports.  As of this 
report, all due financial reports have been submitted.   
 

3. Is the agency responsive to requests for information, forms, revisions to reports, etc.?   
 
In general, BACS responded to City requests for information.  Some City requests have 
required additional time for BACS to respond. 
 

4. Has the agency met its service measures and outcomes according to the contract 
requirements?   
 
BACS service delivery was impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.  Some outcomes 
were met.    

 
5. Does City staff know of any areas of concern that haven't been addressed satisfactorily? 

Please consider any external or City monitoring efforts that have resulted in 
unaddressed findings.   

 
City staff monitored Bay Area Community Services (BACS) for program period July 1, 
2020 - June 30, 2021.  During the monitoring, staff identified 3 findings, 10 concerns and 
3 recommendations. BACS provided requested documents and information and has 
satisfied all of the monitoring findings.   



   
City of Berkeley Monitor Evaluation Summary 

 
Agency Name:   Bay Area Community Services (BACS) 
Program Name:  Stair Navigation Center, North County HRC  
Contract Period:  7/1/19-6/30/23 

 
 

6. Did the agency have significant vacancies for an extended period of time? 

BACS has experienced staff vacancies during this period.  BACS continues to look for 
new ways to recruit and retain staff.  

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































































   
City of Berkeley Monitor Evaluation Summary 

 
Agency Name:   Dorothy Day House, Berkeley (DDH) 
Program Name:  Shelter (Vets Building), Berkeley Emergency Storm Shelter (BESS),  

Berkeley Drop in Center (BCRC) 
Contract Period:  7/1/19-6/30/23 
 

 
1. Agency Strengths/ Other accomplishments during the contract period (FY20-FY22): 

DDH operates low barrier shelters and provides services using a harm reduction model.  
DDH engages clients in multiple ways, from providing basic shower and laundry services at 
its Berkeley Community Resource Center (BCRC) to helping shelter clients collect key 
documents to access permanent housing.   DDH continues to develop its policies and 
procedures to standardize its service delivery and operations.   

The current contract period (FY20-FY23) encompasses more than 2 ½  years of delivering 
services during the COVID-19 pandemic.  During this time, shelter census was reduced by 
approximately 50% to maintain 6’ social distancing per CDC and local guidance and shelter 
operations where expanded to 24/7.  The City partnered with Dorothy Day House to plan, 
prepare and respond to COVID-19.  DDH staff: 1) participated in weekly County and 
monthly City shelter calls covering COVID updates (CDC, CDPH and local guidance) and 
best practices; 2) provided COVID-19 education to participants; 3) distributed PPE; 4) 
referred positive cases to the County’s Isolation Hotels; and 5) offered COVID-19 testing; 
and 6) hosts monthly vaccine clinics.    

 
2. Have agency financial reports been submitted on time?   

 
DDH submits its financial reports on time.   
 

3. Is the agency responsive to requests for information, forms, revisions to reports, etc.?  
 
DDH has been responsive to City requests for follow up information.   
 

4. Has the agency met its service measures and outcomes according to the contract 
requirements?   

 
DDH services were impacted  by the COVID-19 pandemic.  Some outcome goals during this 
period have been met.  

 
6 Does City staff know of any areas of concern that haven't been addressed satisfactorily? 

Please consider any external or City monitoring efforts that have resulted in unaddressed 
findings.   
 
City staff monitored the Shelter (Vets Building), Berkeley Emergency Storm Shelter (BESS),  
Berkeley Drop in Center (BCRC) for program period July 1, 2020 - June 30, 2021.   During 
the monitoring, staff identified zero findings, four concerns and one recommendation. DDH 
submitted all required documentation to satisfy the City of Berkeley’s monitoring review.  
 

7 Did the agency have any significant vacancies for extended period of time?  No.  

 
 
 



   
City of Berkeley Monitor Evaluation Summary 

 
Agency Name:   Dorothy Day House, Berkeley (DDH) 
Program Name:  Shelter (Vets Building), Berkeley Emergency Storm Shelter (BESS),  

Berkeley Drop in Center (BCRC) 
Contract Period:  7/1/19-6/30/23 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 























































































































































































































































































































































































































































































Agency Name: 

Contract Period: 

EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 

Youth Spirit Artworks 

July 1, 2019 - June 30, 2023 

Program Title: Transition Age Youth (TAY) Case Management & Linkage Services 

Youth Spirit Artworks (hereafter "Contractor"), will provide the following services, enumerated 
below, necessary for the implementation of the Transition Age Youth (TAY) Case Management & 
Linkage Services program (hereafter "the Program") for very low income youth (aged 16-24) with 
both a serious mental illness (21 and over) or a serious emotional disturbance (under 21) and a 
functional impairment. This contract is for the period commencing July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2023, 
which may be extended by agreement of the City of Berkeley and Contractor. 

A. MHSA Community Services and Supports {CSS) Funding Requirements 

1. Mental Health services and/or supports funded under this program should be offered to 
individuals/clients with serious mental illness and/or serious emotional disturbance, and when 
appropriate, their families. 

2. Programs to be implemented must incorporate the following standards as defined in Section 
3320 of the Mental Health Services Act regulations: Community Collaboration; Cultural 
Competence; Client and Family Driven; Wellness, Recovery, and Resilience focused; and 
Integrated Service Experiences for clients and their families. 

3. Outreach programs and activities to be implemented are for the purposes of identifying 
unserved individuals who meet the criteria of Welfare and Institutions Code Sections 5600.3 (a), 
(b) or ( c) in order to engage them, and when appropriate their families, in the mental health system 
so that they receive appropriate services. 

4. Outreach and Engagement funds may be used to pay for: 
• Strategies to reduce ethnic/racial disparities 
• Food, clothing, and shelter when the purpose is to engage unserved individuals and when 

appropriate their families, in the mental health system. 

• Outreach to entities such as: Community based organizations; Schools; Tribal 
communities; Primary care providers; Faith-based organizations. 

• Outreach to individuals such as: Community leaders; those who are homeless; those who 
are incarcerated. 

B. Program-Specific Requirements: MHSA TAY Case Management 



1. Target Population 

Transition Age Youth (TAY), residing in or attending school in Berkeley or Albany, who have 
either a serious mental illness (21 and over) or a serious emotional disturbance (under 21) and a 
functional impairment, defined here as: limitations in social and occupational spheres of life, or 
limitations in other important areas of functioning. 

2. Goals 

The intended outcomes of this project are to increase access to Mental Health services and 
supports for TAY in need, through the provision of clinical case management services. 

3. Services 

Contractor will provide case management services to a minimum of fifty (50) TAY who either 
reside or go to school in Berkeley or Albany per fiscal year, with an average monthly case load of 
at least twenty-five (25) clients. Services will include linkage to education, benefits, housing and 
treatment, as well as case management services, defined here as: the coordination of community
based services by a professional or team to provide people quality mental health care that is 
customized according to an individual's setbacks or persistent challenges and aid them to their 
recovery. 

4. Methods for Identifying and Referring Participants in need of Mental Health 
Services or other Community Resources 

Contractor will identify, develop and maintain relationships with other community agencies 
providing services to youth so individuals can be directed and assisted to engage in programs and 
supports that will meet their individual needs, such as SSI benefits, housing, etc. Contractor will 
monitor participants' needs and will make referrals to appropriate community resources as needed. 

5. Program Outreach and Engagement Methods 

Contractor will provide culturally responsive outreach and engagement methods that include 
sensitivity to, and inclusion of, issues regarding a youth's sexual orientation, gender, and gender 
presentation. Engagement methods will create trusting relationships with youth which enable a 
clear assessment of each individual's current level of functioning. Outreach and engagement 
methods will prioritize underserved populations. No more than twenty (20) percent of the 
contracted funds can be used for outreach and engagement activities. 

6. Documentation 

Contractor will be expected to maintain and provide documentation on the following: 
• Demographics on each individual who received services, including gender identity, race, 

age; ethnicity, and, sexual orientation 

• Clinical records including the initial assessment, treatment plan, and notes from service 
contacts 

• Outreach activities and number of individuals contacted 



The Health, Housing & Community Services (HHCS) Department at the City of Berkeley is 
committed to finding ways to deepen our positive impact on the community, especially for those 
most vulnerable. To support this effort, HHCS will use a framework called Results Based 
Accountability (RBA) that has a proven track record of success in improving the quality of life for 
people and communities. RBA will provide us with a common language and method to better 
understand, communicate, and ultimately strengthen our programs. 

HHCS is incorporating Results Based Accountability into our contact processes including requests 
for proposals, reporting, contract monitoring activities and evaluations. All new or renewed 
contracts will provide information and data that address the three basic RBA questions: How much 
work was done? How well was it done? And, are clients better off as a result of the services 
provided? Providers can expect to be asked how they measure whether clients are better off and 
the quality of the delivered services. HHCS will work with providers to identify appropriate 
performance measures including service measures and outcomes. Processes will be developed to 
monitor and improve performance over time. Contractor agrees to participate and develop RBA 
outcomes in the three RBA areas (how much, how well, and is anyone better off) within this 
contract period. 

The Contractor agrees to comply with all-data requests and utilize any forms the City may provide 
to report on program data including the Quarterly Demographics Report and Quarterly Activities 
Report (Attachment C). Completed Reports are due to the City of Berkeley by the 15th day of the 
month following the reporting quarter. Following the contract period, an Annual Program Report 
will be due on 07/15/2023. 

The City of Berkeley will conduct at least one annual Quality Assurance Site Visit. 

Contractor will comply with all relevant provisions of the Health Insurance Portability 
Accountability Act ("HIPP A") and all other applicable federal, state, and local privacy laws and 
regulations. 

ATTACHMENT A: Service Measures and Outcomes (How Much) 

Service Measure # Unduplicated Outcomes To Be # of Clients To Documentation 
Berkeley/ Albany Achieved Achieve Required 
Clients To Be Outcomes 
Served 

Clinical Case 50 per year, Clients will 50 per year, Assessment with 
Management average of 25 receive an average of 25 per diagnosis and 
Services per month assessment, be month evidence of 

verified that they functional 
are eligible impairment, 
participants, and verification of 
receive at least 3 age and 
services post residence or 
assessment school 

attendance in 
Berkeley or 
Albany, and 



Staff 
Title 

I service notes. 

ATTACHMENT B: List all staffing funded with City funds as part of this program. You must 
provide written notice, including the resume and position of the new staff person, 5 days prior to 
making any changes. 

Existing Staff Degrees/Certificates/Experience TB/FP* TB/FP* Services 
Position? Name Required? Current/ Provided as 
(YIN) (YIN) Completed? Part of this 

(YIN) Contract 

Executive y Sally M.Div/MA y y Program 
Director Hindman 

Clinical y TBD MSW y N 
Case 
Manager 

Lead 
Social 
Worker 

y TBD MSW y N 

*Tuberculosis (TB) testing and Fingerprinting (FP) may be required. 

ATTACHMENT C: Quarterly Demographics Report & Quarterly Activities Report 

C. Program-Specific Requirements: Tiny Homes Case Management 

7. Target Population 

and finance 
reports; 
program 
oversight 
Provides 
clinical case 
management 

Provides 
direct 
service to 
TAY 

Transition Age Youth (TAY), homeless in Berkeley, who are residing or planning in residing at 
the YSA Tiny Homes Project. 

8. Goals 



The intended outcomes of this project are to support 11 homeless Berkeley TAY individuals 
residing at the Tiny Homes Project in successfully transitioning to permanent housing . 

9. Services 

Contractor will provide case management services to a minimum of eleven (11) homeless Berkeely 
TAY who reside at the Tiny Homes Project. Services will include linkage to education, benefits, 
housing and treatment, as well as case management services, defined here as: the coordination of 
community-based services by a professional or team to provide people quality mental health care 
that is customized according to an individual's setbacks or persistent challenges and aid them to 
their recovery. All individuals served in this program will be linked by YSA to the coordinated 
housing entry system. 

10. Methods for Identifying and Referring Participants in need of Mental Health 
Services or other Community Resources 

Contractor will identify, develop and maintain relationships with other community agencies 
providing services to youth so individuals can be directed and assisted to engage in programs and 
supports that will meet their individual needs, such as SSI benefits, housing, etc. Contractor will 
monitor participants' needs and will make referrals to appropriate community resources as needed. 

11. Documentation 

Contractor will be expected to maintain and provide documentation on the following: 
• Demographics on each individual who received services, including gender identity, race, 

age, ethnicity, and, sexual orientation 

12. Service Outcomes & Reporting 

YSA will track participants' progress toward self-responsibility, which includes: 
• Developing and solidifying the skills to be job-ready; 
• Improving health and wellness, mentally and physically; 
• Setting and meeting educational and vocational goals; 
• Progressing toward sustainable independent living. 

All clients will receive an HMIS program entry within 2 days of entering the program 
and, at minimum, an HMIS annual assessment and HMIS exit upon leaving the 
program. YSA will report on the following outcomes to the City of Berkeley both in 
aggregate and disaggregated by race. CHS staff will notify YSA when the HMIS report 
to disaggregate data by race is available. 

• Adult (age 18+) Transitional Housing program participants who maintained or 
increased their income at annual/exit assessment. (Goal: 80%) 

• Transitional Housing program participants who were enrolled in mainstream 
benefits at annual/exit assessment. (Goal: 83%) 

• Transitional Housing program participants who were enrolled in health 
insurance at the annual/exit assessment. (Goal: 80%) 



• Transitional Housing participants who successfully exited the program to 
permanent housing. (Goal: 80%) 

• Number of youth who become document ready for housing within 90 days 
(Goal 80%) 

13. Initiative to Measure Success and Report Outcomes 
(Participation in the Alameda County Homeless Management Information-System) 

A. As a provider of services or housing to homeless and at risk households in Berkeley, 
Contractor shall participate in the system-wide initiative to measure success and report 
outcomes. The outcomes and efficiency measures for the program-type or types covered by 
this contract are included under section III above. 

B. Contractor shall collect required information on clients and services provided and enter data 
into the Alameda County InHOUSE HMIS system or, if exempted from participation, a 
comparable database. Contractor will be provided the necessary licenses, training and 
technical assistance to utilize InHOUSE. 

C. Contractor shall use provided boilerplates reports from the InHOUSE system to track and 
report on outcomes adopted for the initiative. These boilerplate reports will be modified from 
time to time as outcomes expectations or reporting requirements are adjusted. 

D. Contractor shall be provided periodic system-level reports that show system performance 
and progress on all require~ benchmarks and measures. 

D. Program-Specific Requirements: Trauma Support Services for TAY 

14. Target Population 

Transition Age Youth (TAY), residing in or attending school in Berkeley or Albany who have 
experienced trauma, particularly individuals experiencing homelessness. The primary target 
population will include various cultural, ethnic and age specific populations that are unserved, 
underserved and inappropriately served in Berkeley including: African Americans; Latinx/Latinos; 
Lesbian, Gay, Bisexual, Transgender, Queer/Questioning, Intersex, Agender Plus (LBGTQIA+). 

15. Goals 

The intended outcomes of this project are to increase access to Mental Health services and 
supports for TAY in need of trauma support, through the provision of trauma-informed, strength
based approaches and other community-defined methods that will promote resiliency factors. 

16. Services 

Contractor will provide services to a minimum of sixty (60) TAY who either reside or go to school 
in Berkeley or Albany per fiscal year. Services will include culturally, ethnically, and 
linguistically responsive outreach and engagement, individual and group services, family and 
community member supports, and linkages and referrals. Services should also include 
opportunities for TAY to be introduced to area educational, artistic, and employment events and 



venues and to celebrate successes with one another. 

17. Methods for Identifying and Referring Participants in need of Mental Health 
Services or other Community Resources 

Contractor will identify, develop and maintain relationships with other community agencies 
providing services to youth so individuals can be directed and assisted to engage in programs and 
supports that will meet their individual needs, such as SSI benefits, housing, etc. Contractor will 
monitor participants' needs and will make referrals to appropriate community resources as needed. 

18. Program Outreach and Engagement Methods 

Contractor will provide culturally responsive outreach and engagement methods that include 
sensitivity to, and inclusion of, issues regarding a youth's sexual orientation, gender, and gender 
presentation. Engagement methods will create trusting relationships with youth which enable a 
clear assessment of each individual's current level of functioning. Outreach and engagement 
methods will prioritize underserved populations. 

19. Documentation 

Contractor will be expected to maintain and provide documentation on the following: 
• Demographics on each individual who received services, including gender identity, race, 

age, ethnicity, and, sexual orientation 

• Outreach activities and number of individuals contacted 

• Process and outcome data 

• Program successes and challenges 

The Health, Housing & Community Services (HHCS) Department at the City of Berkeley is 
committed to finding ways to deepen our positive impact on the community, especially for those 
most vulnerable. To support this effort, HHCS will use a framework called Results Based 
Accountability (RBA) that has a proven track record of success in improving the quality of life for 
people and communities. RBA will provide us with a common language and method to better 
understand, communicate, and ultimately strengthen our programs. 

HHCS is incorporating Results Based Accountability into our contact processes including requests 
for proposals, reporting, contract monitoring activities and evaluations. All new or renewed 
contracts will provide information and data that address the three basic RBA questions: How much 
work was done? How well was it done? And, are clients better off as a result of the services 
provided? Providers can expect to be asked how they measure whether clients are better off and 
the quality of the delivered services. HHCS will work with providers to identify appropriate 
performance measures including service measures and outcomes. Processes will be developed to 
monitor and improve performance over time. Contractor agrees to participate and develop RBA 
outcomes in the three RBA areas (how much, how well, and is anyone better off) within this 
contract period. 



The Contractor agrees to comply with all data requests and utilize any forms the City may provide 
to report on program data including the Quarterly Demographics Report and Quarterly Activities 
Report (Attachment C). Completed Reports are due to the City of Berkeley by the 15th day of the 
month following the reporting quarter. Following the contract period, an Annual Program Report 
will be due on 07/15/2023. 

The City of Berkeley will conduct at least one annual Quality Assurance Site Visit. 

Contractor will comply with all relevant provisions of the Health Insurance Portability 
Accountability Act ("HIPP A") and all other applicable federal, state, and local privacy laws and 
regulations. 

ATTACHMENT A: Service Measures and Outcomes 

(How Much) 

Service Measure 

Clinical Case 
Management 
Services 

Referral and 
linkage to 
Coordinated 
Entry System 

Enrollment in 
Health Insurance 

(How Well) 

Service Measure 

# Unduplicated 
Berkeley/ Albany 
Clients To Be 
Served 
11 per year. 

11 per year. 

11 per year. 

# Unduplicated 
Berkele / Alban 

Outcomes To Be 
Achieved 

Clients will 
receive an 
assessment, be 
verified that they 
are eligible 
participants, and 
receive at least 3 
services post 
assessment 
Clients will be 
referred and 
linked to 
Coordinated 
Entry System. 
Each client will 
complete an 
assessment and 
YSA will track 
the placement of 
each client on the 
coordinated entry 
list. 
90% of enrolled 
clients will have 
health insurance. 

Outcomes To Be 
Achieved 

# of Clients To 
Achieve 
Outcomes 

11 per year. 

11 per year. 

# of Clients To 
Achieve 

Documentation 
Required 

Verification of 
age and status of 
homeless in 
Berkeley, and 
service notes. 

Coordinated 
Entry ranking list 
containing names 
of each of the 11 
clients. 

Documentation 
Re uired 



Clients To Be Outcomes 
Served 

Consumer 11 per year. Clients will 11 per year. Verification of 
Satisfaction receive a pre and age and status of 

post case homeless in 
management Berkeley, and 
satisfaction service notes. 
survey. 

ATTACHMENT B: List all staffing funded with City funds as part of this program. You must 
provide written notice, including the resume and position of the new staff person, 5 days prior to 
making any changes. 

Staff Existing Staff Degrees/Certificates/Experience TB/FP* TB/FP* Services 
Title Position? Name Required? Current/ Provided as 

(YIN) (YIN) Completed? Part of this 
(YIN) Contract 

Executive y Sally M.Div/MA y y Program 
Director Hindman and finance 

reports; 
program 
oversight 

Clinical y TBD MSW y N Provides 
Case clinical case 
Manager management 

Lead y TBD MSW y N Provides 
Social direct 
Worker service to 

TAY 

*Tuberculosis (TB) testing and Fingerprinting (FP) may be required. 



ATTACHMENT B 
Youth Spirit Artworks 

City of Berkeley MHSA CSS Contract 
Quarterly Activity Form 



- How Much Was Done: Services · · 

Activity 

Mental Health Services (Individual) 

Includes therapy and lxl case 
management services 

Outreach 

Activity 

Referrals 

TOTAL REFERRAIS 

Activity 

Mental Health Services (Individual) 

Measure 

# of sessions delivered 

#of individuals served (unduplicated) 

# outreach activities 
# of people contacted through outreach activities 

(duplicated) 

Measure 

# of mental health referrals 

# of physical health referrals 

# of social services referrals 

# of housing referrals 

# of other referrals 

Measure 

% satisfied with treatment 
% of CSS participants that attend the peer support 

groups 

% of mental health referrals that take up the service 

% that exit into stable housing 

% employed or in school 

ATTACHMENT C: 

FY19QTRXX 

FY19QTRXX 

FY19 QTR XX FY19 QTR XX FY19 QTR XX 

· Numerator Denominator - . % 

Demographic Reporting Requirements 
For the information reported under the various program categories, each program will need to report disaggregate 

numbers served, number of potential responders engaged, and number of referrals for treatment and other services by: 



(A) The following Age groups: 

• 0-15 (children/youth) 

• 16-25 (transition age youth) 

• 26-59 (adult) 

• ages 60+ (older adults) 

• Number of respondents who declined to answer the question 

(B) Race by the following categories: 

• American Indian or Alaska Native 

• Asian 

• Black or African American 

• Native Hawaiian or other Pacific Islander 

• White 

• Other 

• More than one race 
• Number of respondents who declined to answer the question 

(C) Ethnicity by the following categories: 

(i} Hispanic or Latino as follows 

• Caribbean 

• Central American 

• Mexican/Mexican-American/Chicano 

• Puerto Rican 

• South American 

• Other 

• Number of respondents who declined to answer the question 

(ii) Non-Hispanic or Non-Latino as follows 

• African 

• Asian Indian/South Asian 

• Cambodian 

• Chinese 

• Eastern European 

• European 

• Filipino 

• Japanese 

• Korean 

• Middle Eastern 

• Vietnamese 

• Other 

• Number of respondents who declined to answer the question 

• More than one ethnicity 

• Number of respondents who declined to answer the question 

(D) Primary language used listed by threshold languages 

• English 



• Spanish 

• Mandarin 

{E) Sexual orientation, 

• Gay or Lesbian 

• Heterosexual or Straight 

• Bisexual 

• Questioning or unsure of sexual orientation 

• Queer 

• Another sexual orientation 

• Number of respondents who declined to answer the question 

(F) Disability, defined as a physical or mental impairment or medical condition lasting at least six months that 
substantially limits a major life activity, which is not the result of a severe mental illness 

• If Yes, report the number that apply in each domain of disability(ies) 
o Communication domain separately by each of the following: 

■ difficulty seeing, 

■ difficulty hearing, or having speech understood) 

■ other, please specify 

o Mental domain not including a mental illness (including but not limited to a learning disability, 
developmental disability, dementia) 

o Physical/mobility domain 

o Chronic health condition (including but not limited to chronic pain) 

o Other (specify) 

• No 

• Number of respondents who declined to answer the question 

(G) Veteran Status, 

• Yes 

• No 

• Number of respondents who declined to answer the question 

(H) Gender 
(i) Assigned sex at birth: 

(a) Male 
(b) Female 
(c) Number of respondents who declined to answer the question 

(ii) Current gender identity: 
(a) Male 
(b) Female 

1 (c) Transgender 
(d) Genderqueer 

(e) Questioning or unsure of gender identity 
(f) Another gender identity 
(g) Number of respondents who declined to answer the question 



EXHIBITB 

PAYMENT 

GENERAL: Contract Not to Exceed amount is $737,092. This amendment adds 
$210,046 to the previous total. 

BILLING: Contractor will submit invoices for services rendered on a monthly basis. 

INVOICES: Invoices must be fully itemized, and provide sufficient information for 
approving payment and audit. Invoices must be accompanied by receipt for services in 
order for payment to be processed. Email invoices to Accounts Payable and cc' 
comurphy@cityofberkeley.info; (List on invoice, Attn: Conor Murphy/HHCS) and 
reference contract number 32000094. 

City of Berkeley 
Accounts Payable 

P.O. Box 700 
Berkeley, CA 94710-700 

Email: AccountsPayable@cityofberkeley.info 
Phone: 510-981-7310 

Payments: The City will make payment to the vendor within 30 days of receipt of a 
correct, approved and complete invoice. 



CITY OF BERKELEY 
Oppressive States Compliance Statement for Personal Services 

The undersigned, an authorized agent of $ (hereafter 
"Vendor"), has had an opportunity to revie the requirements o Berkeley City Council Resolution No. 59,853-
N.S. (hereafter "Resolution"). Vendor understands and agrees that the City may choose with whom it will maintain 
business relations and may refrain from contracting with those Business Entities which maintain business 
relationships with morally repugnant regimes. Vendor understands the meaning of the following terms used in the 
Resolution: 

"Business Entity" means "any individual, firm, partnership, corporation, association or any other commercial 
organization, including parent-entities and wholly-owned subsidiaries" (to the extent that their operations are 
related to the purpose of the contract with the City). 

"Oppressive State" means: Tibet_Autonomous Region and the Provinces of Amdo, Kham and U-Tsang 

"Personal Services" means "the performance of any work or labor and shall also include acting as an independent 
contractor or providing any consulting advice or assistance, or otherwise acting as an agent pursuant to a 
contractual relationship." 

Contractor understands that it is not eligible to receive or retain a City contract if at the time the contract is 
executed, or at any time during the term of the contract it provides Personal Services to: 

a. The governing regime in any Oppressive State. 
b. Any business or corporation organized under the authority of the governing regime of any 

Oppressive State. 
c. Any person for the express purpose of assisting in business operations or trading with any public or 

private entity located in any Oppressive State. 

Vendor further understands and agrees that Vendor's failure to comply with the Resolution shall constitute a default 
of the contract and the City Manager may terminate the contract and bar Vendor from bidding oh future contracts 
with the City for five (5) years from ,the effective date of the contract termination. 

The undersigned is familiar with, or has made a reasonable effort to become familiar with, Vendor's business 
structure and the geographic extent of its operations. By executing the Statement, Vendor certifies that it complies 
with the requirements of the Resolution and that if any time during the term of the contract it ceases to comply, 
Vendor will promptly notify the City Manager in writing. 

Based on the foregoing, the undersigned declares under penalty of perjury under the laws of the State of California 
that the foregoing is true and correct. 

ri rt,. e'f'eiVt\-Eo~itle: <D/r-ec_~,2 OcS ~v~rifons 
~~.L.¥=-~::;...µ~.Jd--~~~ate: 1. 2 3 . -~D 2 ,3 

r rSpi n:+ l\ yr\- ))\)~ 
ram unable to execute this Statement; however, Vendor is exempt under Section VII of the Resolution. I have 
attached a separate statement explaining the reason(s) Vendor cannot comply and the basis for any requested 
exemption. 

Signature: Date: ------------------ ---------------~--

Contract description/Specification No.: ----------------------------

Attachment D 



ACORD® CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE I 
DATE (MM/DD/YYYY) 

~ 12/21/2022 

_______, 

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS 
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES 
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED 

REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. 

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed. 
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on 

this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s). 

PRODUCER ~~~1~CT Rebekah Sheley 
lnterWest Insurance Services, LLC 

rigNJo Ext\: 800-579-6369 I FAX 
40169 Truckee Airport Road, Suite 203 /A/C Nol: 530-582-6007 

Truckee CA 96161 !iD'}l~s~: rshelev@1wins.com 

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC# 

License# 0B01094 INSURER A : Nonprofits' Insurance Alliance of California 11845 

INSURED YOUTSPl-01 INSURER B : Hartford Fire Insurance Co 19682 
Youth Spirit Artworks 

INSURER C: 1740 Alcatraz Avenue 
Berkeley CA 94703 INSURERD: 

INSURERE: 

INSURER F. 

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER· 261074943 REVISION NUMBER: 
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD 
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS 
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS, 
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS. 

INSR ADDL SUBR POLICY EFF POLICY EXP 
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE ,.,.,.., ,.n,n POLICY NUMBER /MM/DDNYYYl /MM/DD/YYYYl LIMITS 

A X COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY y 2022-31965 12/21/2022 12/21/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 
-

□ CLAIMS-MADE 0 OCCUR 
DAMAGE TO RENTED 
PREMISES (Ea occurrence) S 500,000 

MED EXP (Any one person) S 20,000 
-

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $1,000,000 
-

GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER GENERAL AGGREGATE $2,000,000 

~ □ PRO- □ PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $2,000,000 POLICY JECT LOG 

OTHER: Hired/NOA BA HIRED & N/0 AUTO $ Included 

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT s /Ea accident\ -
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Per person) s 

-
OWNED - SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) S 

- AUTOS ONLY I---- AUTOS 
HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE $ 
AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY /Per accident) - I----

$ 

A X UMBRELLA LIAB H OCCUR 
2022-31965A-U MB 12/21/2022 12/21/2023 EACH OCCURRENCE $1,000,000 

-
EXCESS LIAB CLAIMS-MADE - AGGREGATE S 1,000,000 

OED I I RETENTION s s 
WORKERS COMPENSATION I PER I I OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY STATUTE ER 

Y/N 
ANYPROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE 

□ N/A 
E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $ 

OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED? 
(Mandatory in NH) E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $ 
If yes, descnbe under 

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT s DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below 
B CRIME 57BDDIT9428 11/29/2022 11/29/2023 Employee Theft 1,000,000 

Computer/funds Trans 1,000,000 
Forgery/Alteration 1,000,000 

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS/ VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required) 
City of Berkeley, its officers, agents, employees & volunteers are named as additional insured per attached scheduled CG2026 0413, 30 day notice of 
cancellation applies per attached NIAC-E64 1012. Only when required by written contract and subject to current policy terms. 
RE. (CMS# YSA-TAY) Youth case management and social work by named insured with written contract. CMS# XZ57E 

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION 

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE 
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN 

City of Berkeley ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS. 
Health, Housing & Community Services Dept 
Mental Health Division/Compliance unit AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE 
3282 Adeline St 

£;.ck~ Berkeley CA 94703 

I 
© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. 

ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD 



1•□1 NONPROFITS 
INSURANCE 

- ALLIANCE OF CALIFORNIA 

A Head for Insurance. A Heart for Nonprofits. 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

AMENDED 
NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

BUSINESS AUTO COVERAGE FORM 

Cancellation: 30 Days Notice of Cancellation 

Person or Organization 

The City of Berkeley its officers, ag·ents, volunteers and employees 
The Regents of the University of California, et al. 

If we cancel this policy for any statutorily permitted reason other than nonpayment of premium, we will mail notice of 
cancellation to the person or organization shown above. We will mail such notice to the address shown at least the number 
of days shown for cancellation. 

NIAC-E6410 12 



POLICY NUMBER: 2022-31965 COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 
CG 20 26 0413 

THIS ENDORSEMENT CHANGES THE POLICY. PLEASE READ IT CAREFULLY. 

ADDITIONAL INSURED - DESIGNATED 
PERSON OR ORGANIZATION 

This endorsement modifies insurance provided under the following: 

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY COVERAGE PART 

SCHEDULE 

Name Of Additional Insured Person(s) Or Organizatlon(s): 

City of Berkeley 
Health, Housing & Community Seivices Dept 
Mental Health Division/Compliance unit 
3282 Adeline St 
Berkeley, CA 94703 

Information required to comolete this Schedule, if not shown above, will be shown in the Declarations. 

A. Section II - Who Is An Insured is amended to 
include as an additional insured the person(s) or 
organization(s) shown in the Schedule, but only 
with respect to liability for "bodily injury", "property 
damage" or "personal and advertising injury'' 
caused, in whole or in part, by your acts or 
omissions or the acts or omissions of those acting 
on your behalf: 

1. In the performance of your ongoing operations; 
or 

2. In connection with your premises owned by or 
rented to you. 

However: 

1. The insurance afforded to such additional 
insured only applies to the extent permitted by 
law; and 

2. If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the 
insurance afforded to such additional insured 
will not be broader than that which you are 
required by the contract or agreement to 
provide for such additional insured. 

B. With respect to the insurance afforded to these 
additional insureds, the following is added to 
Section Ill - Limits Of Insurance: 

If coverage provided to the additional insured is 
required by a contract or agreement, the most we 
will pay on behalf of the additional insured is the 
amount of insurance: 

1. Required by the contract or agreement; or 

2. Available under the applicable Limits of 
Insurance shown in the Declarations; 

whichever is less. 

This endorsement shall not increase the 
applicable Limits of Insurance shown in the 
Declarations. 

CG 20 26 0413 © Insurance Services Office, Inc., 2012 Page 1 of 1 



RESOLUTION NO. 70,468-N.S. 

CONTRACT NO. 32000094 AMENDMENT: YOUTH SPIRIT AR1WORKS FOR 
TRANSITION AGE YOUTH CASE MANAGEMENT AND LINKAGE SERVICES AND 
TINY HOUSE CASE MANAGEMENT 

WHEREAS, Mental Health Services Act (MHSA) funds are allocated to mental health 
jurisdictions across the state for the purposes of transforming the mental health system 
into one that is consumer and famiiy driven, culturally competent, wellness and recovery 
oriented, includes community collaboration, and implements integrated services; and 

WHEREAS, qn July 23, 2019 by Resolution No. 69,033-N.S., City Council authorized the 
City Manager to approve the MHSA Plan FY2019-2020 Annual Update; af1d 

WHEREAS, within the City Council approved MHSA Plan FY2019-2020 Annual Update 
was an allocation of $100,000 for contracted Transition Age Youth (TAY) Case 
Management and Linkage Services; and 

WHEREAS, on December 3, 2019 by Resolution No. 69,'194-N.S., City Council 
authorized the City Manager to approve amending Contract No. 32000094 through June 
30, 2020 in an amount not to exceed $100,000; and 

WHEREAS, on June 2, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,436-N.S., City Council authorized the. 
City Manager to approve amending Contract No. 32000094 through June 30, 2021 in an 
amount not to exceed $217,000; and 

WHEREAS, on July 28, 2020 by Resolution No. 69,511..:N.S., City Council authorized the 
City Manager to approve amending Contract No. 32000094 through June 30, 2021 in an 
amount not to exceed $317,000; and 

WHEREAS, on November 30, 2021 by Resolution No. 70, 121-N.S., City Council 
authorized the City Manager to approve amending Contract No. 32000094 through June 
30, 2022 in an amount not to exceed $527,046; and 

WHEREAS, funds are available in the current budget year from the Mental Health 
Services Act ($100,000 from ERMA GL Code 315-51-503-526-2017-000-451-636110 
and $32,046 from ERMA GL Code 315-51-503-526-2016-000-451-636110) and Measure 
P ($78,000 from ERMA GL Code 011-51-503-523-5002-000-451-636110). 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of Berkeley that the 
City Manager or her designee is authorized to execute an amendment to Contract No. 
32000094 with Youth Spirit Artworks for Transition Age Youth case management and 
linkage services and Tiny House case management increasing the contract by $210,046 
for a new total not to exceed amount of $737,092, and extending the contract through 
June 20, 2023. A record signature copy of said contract and any amendments to be on 
file in the City Clerk Department. 

Resolution No. 70,468-N.S. Page 1 of2 



The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Berkeley City Council on July 26, 
2022 by the following vote: 

Ayes: 

Noes: 

Absent: 

Attest: 

Bartlett, Hahn, Harrison, Kesarwani, Robinson, Taplin, Wengraf, and 
Arreguin. 

None. 

Droste. 

~-(~~ 
M~ Numainille, City Clerk 

Jesse Arreguin, Mayor 

JAN 2 4 2023 

CfIY OF BERKELEY 
C:TY CLERK DZ?J:uq1TvlSNT 

Resolution No. 70,468-N.S. Page 2 of 2 


	00. Draft Agenda 4.26.23
	MEETING AGENDA
	April 26, 2023 – 7:00 PM
	North Berkeley Senior Center, Aspen Room
	1901 Hearst Ave., Berkeley, CA 94709
	Commission Secretary:  Josh Jacobs (jjacobs@berkeleyca.gov; 510-225-8035)
	All items are for discussion and possible action.

	01A. 03-08-23HomelessServicesPanelMinutes-draft
	MEETING MINUTES

	01B. DRAFT 04-18-23HomelessServicesPanelMinutes-draft
	MEETING MINUTES

	01c. Land Acknowledgement Statement
	02. 210413_Regional_Action_Plan_Final
	03. Measure P forecast slides
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2
	Slide Number 3
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7

	04. Supplimental material - Program info
	1. BACS_CountractEvaluationSummary
	2. HRC EXPENDITURE Contract-#31900273 - Date Executed_ 2_24_2022-BACS-Homeless Services-Housing Resource Center (Amendment)
	3. STAIR EXPENDITURE Contract-#10904D Date Executed_ 2_17_2022-BACS-Pathways STAIR Center (Amendment)
	4. Golden Bear Homes Homekey Project Contract
	EXPENDITURE Contract - # 31900236 - Date Executed_ 2_7_2020 - Alameda County Network of Mental Health Clients - Homeles
	EXPENDITURE Contract - # 31900271 - Date Executed_ 1_19_2023 - Berkeley Food and Housing Project - Homeless Services (Amendment)
	Downtown Berkeley Association - Downtown - Supportive Services - Measure P Funds
	1. DDH_ContractEvalutionSummary
	DDH BESS 05_EXPENDITURE Contract - # 31900284 - Date Executed_ 12_16_2021 
	EXPENDITURE Contract - # 32100161 - Date Executed_ 12_16_2021 - Dorothy Day House - Homeless Services - Horizon Shelter and
	EXPENDITURE Contract - # 31900031 - Date Executed_ 8_9_2022 - Downtown Streets Team, Inc. - Supplemental Hand Sweep and Bagging for Leaf, Litter & Debris Removal from C (1)
	EXPENDITURE Contract - # 32100023 - Date Executed_ 12_1_2022 - Eviction Defense Center - COVID-19 Housing Retention Program (Amendmen
	Youth Spirit Artworks - Tiny Home




